
Page 1 of 3 

  

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, JUNE 27, 2016  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

16C‐0248. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

16C‐0249.  Roll Call 

16C‐0250.  Establishment of Quorum 
16C‐0251.  Pledge of Allegiance 
16C‐0252.  Reports of Standing Committees 
16C‐0253.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0254. 
 
Public Hearing to Review Project Performance and Obtain Citizens Views 
Regarding the Recently Completed Third and Rives Street Sanitary Sewer 
Extension Project 

 
4 

 
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0255. 
 
Reconsideration of a Request for a Class M Liquor License by Daniel Balocca, 
125 South Prospect Street, for The Inn at Felt Manor, DBA Felt Manor 

 
5‐10 

None. 

Page 1 of 99



Page 2 of 3 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16‐12 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0256. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of June 13, 2016  

11‐18 

 
16C‐0257. 

 
Approval of Budget Amendment BA17‐01 for Third and Rives Sewer Project, 
Police Software, and Grant Park Gazebo Roof 

19‐20 

 
16C‐0258. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract with B & P Roofing for the 
Replacement of the Gazebo Roof in Grant Park 

21 

 
16C‐0259. 

 
Acceptance of April and May 2016 Financial Reports 

‐‐ 

 
16C‐0260. 

 
Approval of Request by Antique Town Rods for Live Music in Grant Park or at 
Depot Park on July 16, 2016 from 6 P.M. to 10 P.M. 

22 

 
16C‐0261. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Closure of the Green Street Plaza for 
the Elk’s Corn Roast and Live Music on August 18, 2016 from Noon to 6:00 
P.M. 

23‐24 

 
16C‐0262. 

 
Approval of an Agreement Between Jo Daviess County Transit Operated by 
the Workshop and the City of Galena for General Public Transportation 

25‐30 

 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0238. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Request by the Galena Dog Park 
Committee for Approval to Conduct Feasibility Studies Regarding Financial 
Considerations and Location of the Following Potential Sites for a Dog Park: 
1. Rec Park; 2 and 3: two Areas in Scenic Meadows; 4. Turtle Pond 

 
 
31  

 
16C‐0240. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Request by the Galena Historical Society 
and Museum to Conduct the First Annual “Heroes for History” Stair 
Run/Walk on September 10, 2016 

 
32 

Page 2 of 99



Page 3 of 3 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

 
CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. July 7  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Turner Hall Committee  Thurs. July 7  8:30 A.M.  Turner Hall, 115 S. Bench Street 

City Council    Mon. July 11  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. July 13  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Posted: Thursday, June 23, 2016 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0263. 
 
Presentation by the Richard Peterson Emergency Medical Technician 
Endowment Scholarship Fund   

 
‐‐ 

 
16C‐0264. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Request by Grace Episcopal Church to 
Rezone to Planned Unit Development with an Underlying Default District of 
Low Density Residential  

 
33‐63 

 
16C‐0265. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract for Downtown Sidewalk 
Replacement  

 64‐65 

 
16C‐0266. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Regulating Wages of Laborers, Mechanics and 
Other Workers Employed in Public Works Projects for The City of Galena, 
Illinois (Prevailing Wage Ordinance) 

66‐74 

 
16C‐0267. 

  
Reconsideration of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 110.39 “Street 
Performers” of the Galena Code of Ordinances   

75‐91 

 
16C‐0268. 

 
Warrants   92‐99 

 
16C‐0269. 

 
Alderpersons’ Comments 

 

 
16C‐0270. 

 
City Administrator’s Report  

 

 
16C‐0271. 

 
Mayor’s Report 

 

 
16C‐0272. 

 
Adjournment 

 

     

Page 3 of 99



PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
CITY OF GALENA 

 
MONDAY JUNE 27, 2016 AT 6:30 P.M. 

 
 
The City of Galena will hold a public hearing to review project performance 
and obtain citizens views regarding the recently completed Third & Rives 
Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project.  This project was funded in part 
with grant funds from the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic 
Opportunity.  The public hearing will be held on Monday June 27th at 6:30 
p.m. at the City Hall located at 101 Green Street, Galena IL 61036.  
 
Residents of the City of Galena are encouraged to attend.  Persons with 
disabilities or non-English speaking persons who wish to attend the public 
hearing and need assistance should contact Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk, at 
City Hall located at 101 Green Street, Galena IL 61036 at 815-777-1050 no 
later than June 22nd.  Every effort will be made to make reasonable 
accommodations for these persons. 
 
 
Mark Moran 
City Administrator 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 99



Page 5 of 99



Page 6 of 99



Page 7 of 99



Page 8 of 99



Page 9 of 99



Page 10 of 99



Regular Board Meeting  13 June 2016 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 13 JUNE 2016 
 
 

16C-0224 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 13 June 2016.  
 
16C-0225 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, and 
Renner 
 
16C-0226 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
16C-0227– PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
16C-0228 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
Turner Hall Committee – The next meeting will be held on July 7, 2016 at 8:30 a.m. at Turner 
Hall.  The 10th annual Hunter Fuerste concert will be held this weekend.   
 
Destination Marketing Organization – A joint meeting was held.  They discussed the events 
that have taken place over the past two months.  The next meeting is scheduled for July 5th.  
Applications for the new CEO are due back Wednesday.  The group will get together to review 
the applications.  The service agreement and bylaws have been given to legal counsel for their 
review.   
 
16C-0228 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Paul Brashaw – Brashaw spoke with regard to the Gateway Park Subdivision.  Brashaw advised 
he has talked to Tom Golden who did the soil borings.  The concern for septic systems is a non-
issue.  The soils are more than adequate to accept a septic system.  They did soil borings on all 
six lots five feet deep and didn’t encounter rock.  They have done their due diligence in 
addressing some of the things the City was concerned about.  At this time, it would be cost 
prohibitive to do the sewer.  Brashaw stated if the City could bring it to the property line they could 
maybe look at doing something.  Brashaw noted Gateway Park is on a septic system.  Their 
proposal is to provide a septic system to serve six lots.  The road grades are more than adequate 
serving the subdivision.   
 
Alex Phillips – Phillips noted with septic systems, they must be pumped out.  Companies are 
under stringent requirements as to where that goes.  They will insure that it goes to the proper 
place.  Once the first lot is sold, they would be willing to either have a bond or line of credit that 
will build the roads within 18 months.  Phillips stated they have put a lot of effort into this project 
and have provided detailed plans showing materials for road, water and their desire to have a 
septic in place.    
 
Dan McCarthy, Galena Jo Daviess County Historical Society – McCarthy spoke in regard to 
the “Heroes for History” stair run/walk to be held September 10, 2016 and urged the Council to 
approve their request.   
 
 

Page 11 of 99



Regular Board Meeting  13 June 2016 
 

Denise Hird – Hird also spoke with regard to the “Heroes for History” stair run/walk and thanked 
the Council for their consideration.   
 
Jane Holland 626 Ridge Street – Holland advised she was present should the Council have any 
questions with regard to the item on the agenda for a dog park.   
 
Chris Curran, resident and business owner – Curran wanted to make the Council aware of an 
organization called the Hope Foundation.  The Hope Foundation was established in 2002 by the 
Jo Daviess County Workshop.  The foundation gives assistance to families with disabilities in Jo 
Daviess County.  They provided more than $50,000 in grants in Jo Daviess County.  Curran 
asked the Council to keep the foundation in mind when helping residents in the local area with 
disabilities.   
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Westemeier, to adjourn as the City Council and reconvene 
as the Liquor Commission.     
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
 
16C-0230 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST FOR A CLASS D 
LIQUOR LICENSE BY KENG GAO AND MI LI, DBA LITTLE TOKYO, 300 NORTH MAIN 
STREET 
 
Motion:  Westemeier moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the request for a Class D Liquor 
License by Keng Gao and Mi Li, DBA Little Tokyo, 300 North Main Street, 16C-0230.       
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.    
 
16C-0231 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST FOR CLASS D 
CORPORATION LIQUOR LICENSE MANAGER BY KENG GAO, DBA LITTLE TOKYO, 300 
NORTH MAIN STREET 
 
Motion:  Westemeier moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the request for a Class D 
Corporation Manager Liquor License by Keng Gao, DBA Little Tokyo, 300 North Main Street, 
16C-0231.       
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

Page 12 of 99



Regular Board Meeting  13 June 2016 
 

Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Hahn, to adjourn as the Liquor Commission and 
reconvene as the City Council.     
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16-11 
 
16C-0232 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
MAY 23, 2016 
 
16C-0233 – APPROVAL OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND THE 
PUBLIC WORKS TEAMSTERS UNION REGARDING EMPLOYEE UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 
 
16C-0234 – APPROVAL OF A FUNDRAISING EVENT PERMIT FOR THE CROSSFIT ROW 
RAISER, 6:30 A.M. TO 2:30 P.M., JULY 9, 2016 AT DEPOT PARK 
 
16C-0235 – APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF 2017 FORD EXPLORER BY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT 
 
16C-0236 – APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH WHITE CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR POLICE 
DEPARTMENT PORCH REPAIR 
 
16C-0237 – APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH WELU PAINTING FOR POLICE 
DEPARTMENT PORCH PAINTING 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve Consent Agenda CA16-11 as 
presented.       
 
Discussion:  None.    
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
16C-0215 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO EXECUTE THE FIRST ADDENDUM TO 
THE ANNEXATION AGREEMENT FOR THE GATEWAY PARK SUBDIVISION (FORMERLY 
KNOWN AS THE SULLIVAN SUBDIVISION) ON POWDER HOUSE HILL ROAD 
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the first addendum to the 
Annexation Agreement for the Gateway Park Subdivision (formerly known as the Sullivan 
Subdivision) on Powder House Hill Road, 16C-0215.         
 
Discussion:  Lincoln stated he would have liked to have had the sewer extended to the area; 
however, he feels if the City is going to have the public bathrooms on septic up there then the 
property owners should be allowed to do so as well.  If more businesses come in, Lincoln 
recommended looking at it at that time to see if it would be more feasible.   
 

Page 13 of 99



Regular Board Meeting  13 June 2016 
 

Westemeier feels they would never recoup the $200,00 they would have to put into it.  The City 
can’t turn businesses down.  It is his hopes that later on more businesses will go in up there and it 
will be large enough to put it in then.   
 
Bernstein felt initially this was a very reasonable request; however, she thinks the City would be 
going backwards by approving it.  In the Comprehensive Plan, there is a recommendation to 
modify the current subdivision ordinance that all new subdivisions hook to sanitary and water 
regardless of distance.  This was a concern ten years ago.  The second consideration is the City 
has spent a lot of money to get the residences on Rives Street off septic.  This would all be a 
wash if the City were to allow six septic systems to be installed.  Bernstein noted septic systems 
must be maintained.  She questioned what assurances the City would have that the owner will 
maintain them properly.  Bernstein was opposed to allowing the septic systems.   
 
Kieffer stated all of the ground test have been completed and the project is ready to go.  He sees 
no reason to stop this development.   
 
Fach was opposed as this would be going backwards.  The agreement was if they build up there 
they would be required to put the sewer in.  That agreement was signed five years ago.  Fach 
noted a lot of city’s have impact fees to cover damage that is done when a development goes in 
and to cover costs the city has to pay.  He prefers to look at this as somewhat of an impact fee.  
Galena doesn’t have an impact fee.  The only thing required for a development is the installation 
of streets, sidewalks and street lighting.   
 
Renner agreed to both sides.  The Comprehensive Plan is a guideline.  He would someday like to 
see the sewer extended up Powder House Hill Road.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  Bernstein, Fach 
            
  The motion carried.  
.   
16C-0216 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION 
FOR THE GATEWAY PARK SUBDIVISION (FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE SULLIVAN 
SUBDIVISION) 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the Final Plat of Subdivision for the 
Gateway Park Subdivision (formerly known as the Sullivan Subdivision).   
 
Discussion:  None.    
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
16C-0238 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST BY THE GALENA DOG 
PARK COMMITTEE FOR APPROVAL TO CONDUCT FEASIBILITY STUDIES REGARDING 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND LOCATION OF THE FOLLOWING POTENTIAL SITES 
FOR A DOG PARK:  1.  REC PARK; 2 AND 3:  TWO AREAS IN SCENIC MEADOWS; 4.  
TURTLE POND 
 
A motion to approve was made and later withdrawn.  Council discussed and agreed to postpone 
this item to the next meeting to allow them to take a look at the Scenic Meadows areas.  The 
majority of Council stated they would not be in favor of locating a Dog Park in Rec Park.   
 

Page 14 of 99



Regular Board Meeting  13 June 2016 
 

Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Hahn, to postpone item 16C-0238 to the next meeting.     
 
16C-0239– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST FROM THE GALENA 
SCHOOL BOARD FOR ASSISTANCE WITH THE INSTALLATION OF A SEWER VALVE AT 
THE HIGH SCHOOL 
 
Motion:  Westemeier moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the request from the Galena School 
Board of Education for Assistance with the installation of a sewer valve at the high school.   
 
Discussion:  Hahn feels this is a city problem.  He feels the City should be helping by taking the 
sewer off of that route and crossing it back into Bartell Blvd.  The City has turned down the pumps 
and did a smoke test.   
 
Bernstein is concerned about the immediate consequences.  The problem was alleviated when 
the City slowed down the pumps.  Some infiltration was also fixed which helped.   
 
Renner felt the City needs to be careful or we could be putting in more than one valve.  He urged 
the Council to look at it as a taxing entity.  There were homes in the area that had back up and 
the City isn’t assisting them.  Lincoln agreed.  He noted other residents called when their 
residences filled up.  The City offered them no help.  He was not in support of helping a taxing 
body.  He feels the City needs to make sure we are doing all we can to eliminate the problem all 
together.  The City’s insurance company denied a claim submitted by a homeowner for the same 
thing.   
 
Kieffer was in favor of holding off for a year and budgeting for the diversion next year to solve the 
whole problem.   
 
Fach voiced concern if they start closing valves it could cause problems somewhere else down 
the line.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer 
  NAYS:  Fach 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0240– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST BY THE GALENA 
HISTORICAL SOCIETY AND MUSEUM TO CONDUCT THE FIRST ANNUAL “HEROES FOR 
HISTORY” STAIR RUN/WALK ON SEPTEMBER 10, 2016 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the request by the Galena 
Historical Society and Museum to conduct the first annual “Heroes for History” stair run/walk on 
September 10, 2016.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0241– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE SELECTION OF CONTRACTORS 
FOR 2016 INFRASTRUCTURE REPAIR AND CONSTRUCTION 
 
 

Page 15 of 99



Regular Board Meeting  13 June 2016 
 

 
 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve Jackson Concrete for sidewalk and 
curb/gutter repair and Louie’s Trenching Service for street replacement.   
 
Discussion:  This is for miscellaneous work that comes up throughout the year.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0242– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON INITIATING A ZONING TEXT 
AMENDMENT APPLICATION TO REGULATE AIRBNB 
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Hahn, to direct staff to research and collect information on 
private property overnight rentals.   
 
Discussion:  Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator, stated with the advent of technology, 
vacation rentals by owner or Airbnb has become easier for society to do their travel and book 
rooms.  It has become a situation where property owners are taking advantage of this and putting 
their properties up for rent.  In the past year or so he has been finding people trying to do this in 
Galena.  This violates the Zoning Ordinance.  Oldenburg feels it might be worth taking a look at 
the possibility of having a discussion about vacation rentals in the city limits.  He recommended a 
focus group including residents, business owners and bed and breakfast owners to get their 
thoughts if we want to open up to allow vacation rentals and the regulation that would come with 
that.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0243 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the Warrants as presented, 16C-0243.      
 

UNIT PRICES FOR 2016
Louie's Trenching Jackson Concrete

Item Unit Quantity Unit Cost Quantity Unit Cost Quantity

Remove and replace sidewalk 5 

inch thick SF 100 10.5 1050 10 1000

Remove and replace 5 inch thick 

exposed aggregate sidewalk SF 50 13.5 675 13 650

Install sidewalk 5 inch thick  SF 50 9 450 9 450
Install curb and gutter, 24 inches 
wide, 6 inch high SF 50 33 1650 29 1450

Remove and replace curb and 

gutter, 24 inches wide LF 50 40 2000 35 1750

Remove and replace 9 inch thick 

concrete street, including epoxy 

coated dowels at 24 inch centres SF 100 33 3300 38 3800

Page 16 of 99



Regular Board Meeting  13 June 2016 
 

Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0244 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Gateway Park Subdivision – Fach feels the Council made a major mistake on this item tonight.   
 
Sewer Issue – Hahn stated he was sorry to have to vote no to the request for help with the sewer 
problem at the school.  He feels it would pose more of a problem than it would solve.  He concurs 
with waiting and doing it properly next year.   
 
Dog Park – Bernstein stated while she was walking her dog she encountered a couple with a 
dog.  They discussed the possibility of a dog park.  She is hopeful we will have a dog park.  It will 
be a nice addition to the community.   
 
Green Lodging Program – Bernstein announced the program was launched on Friday.  She is 
happy to report they have already received three applications that would like to be included in the 
program.   
 
16C-0245 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Solar Installation – The installation of the solar panels is expected to start this week.  The 
system should be up and running by the end of the month.   
 
Code Red – Moran thanked the public for their patience and cooperation with the new Code Red 
system.  A test was done last Thursday to calibrate the system.  The County system should be 
activating sometime within in the next 30 days.   
 
Eagle Scout Projects – Moran thanked the Eagle Scouts for getting their projects started.  Riley 
Moser will be building a kiosk at the head of the bike trail and Shawn Harkness will be installing 
brick in the median on Broadway.  Shawn has stacked bricks at the landfill to use for the project.   
 
16C-0246 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Farmers Market – The ribbon cutting was held this weekend.  It was a great event with good 
vendors.  They will be hosting another in July and one in August.  Mayor Renner encouraged all 
to stop down.   
 
Fire Department Expo – Mayor Renner thanked those involved with the Expo in Galena Square.  
It was a great day and well done.     
 
16C-0247 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:    Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
   

Page 17 of 99



Regular Board Meeting  13 June 2016 
 

The meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde, MMC 
City Clerk         

Page 18 of 99



City of Galena, Illinois

Budget Amendment No. 17‐01

Fiscal Year 2016‐17  

Line Item Title Line Item No. Beginning Balance  Increase             Decrease      
Ending           

Balance

Grant (Third and Rives Sewer) 52.347.0 $                                              ‐    $                                   15,000  $              15,000 

Third and Rives Sewer 52.43.850.05 ‐$                                            22,233$                                    22,233$              

Computer/Software Upgrade 01.21.684.00 ‐$                                            24,068$                                    24,068$              

Galena Foundation Donation 17.383.5 ‐$                                            2,745$                                      2,745$                

Galena Foundation Project 17.52.890.00 ‐$                                            2,745$                                      2,745$                

Justification:

Approved Budget After Budget After
Fund Budget Previous Amendments Proposed Amendment

General Fund Revenues 3,916,870$                  3,916,870$                                3,916,870$                             
General Fund Expenses 3,911,742$                  3,911,742$                                3,935,810$                             

General Fund Total 5,128$                         5,128$                                        (18,940)$                                  

Other Fund Revenues 6,365,971$                  6,365,971$                                6,383,716$                             
Other Fund Expenses  6,525,945$                  6,525,945$                                6,550,923$                             

Other Fund Total (159,974)$                    (159,974)$                                  (167,207)$                               

Total Budget Surplus/(Deficit) (154,846)$                    (154,846)$                                   (186,147)$                               

Approved by City Council on ____________________

Mark Moran

Budget Officer

Effect of Budget Amendment on Budget:

This budget amendment includes the following proposed changes to the current budget:

1.   The Third and Rives Sewer Project has been completed.  Some grant revenue will be received, and some costs will be incurred, in the current fiscal year.  The 
current budget assumed that all revenues and expenses would be realized last fiscal year.  This budget amendment adds $15,000 of grant revenue and $22,233 of 
expenses to the current budget.  The expenses include $21,133.20 for construction and $1,100 for grant administration.  These should be the final expenses for the 
project.  

2.  The Police Department budget for last fiscal year included $25,000 for the purchase and implementation of the Spillman Software system.  The system is now 
operational and payment is due.  Our current budget does not include the funds for the purchase.   This amendment adds $24,068 to the Police Department budget 
for the purchase.

3.   One of the projects in the Grant Park Master Plan that is being development in cooperation with the Galena Foundation is a new roof for the gazebo.  The gazebo 
was restored several years ago, but the roof was not replaced.  Bids have been obtained for the project with a low bid of $2,745.  The Galena Foundation plans to 
cover the full cost of the roof with a grant to the City this fiscal year.  This budget amendment adds the grant revenue and the expense to the current Parks budget. 

Page 19 of 99



City of Galena, Illinois

Summary of Budget Amendments

Fiscal Year 2016‐2017

Date Line Item Title Line Item No.
Beginning 

Balance
 Increase          Decrease

Ending         

Balance

Amendment 

Number 

Reference 

Number1

06‐27‐16 Grant (Third and Rives Sewer) 52.347.0  $                         ‐    $           15,000   $           15,000  BA17‐01

 

06‐27‐16 Third and Rives Sewer 52.43.850.05 ‐$                        22,233$            22,233$            BA17‐01

   

06‐27‐16 Computer/Software Upgrade 01.21.684.00 ‐$                        24,068$            24,068$            BA17‐01

   

06‐27‐16 Galena Foundation Donation 17.383.5 ‐$                        2,745$              2,745$              BA17‐01

   

06‐27‐16 Galena Foundation Project 17.52.890.00 ‐$                        2,745$              2,745$              BA17‐01

 

 

 

 

 

 

1  Reference Number confirms that the budget amendment has been updated to the General Ledger.

Updated: 6/14/2016

Page 20 of 99



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    June 14, 2016 

RE:    Police Department Porch Repair and Painting      
 
 
Our staff has been working with the Galena Foundation to develop the master plan for Grant Park.  
We are in the process of obtaining bids for several maintenance projects, including the roofing of 
the gazebo, the repair of the pavilion and pergola, the replacement of the concrete at the base of 
the soldier’s monument, and tree pruning and removal.  These are projects that the Galena 
Foundation has committed to fund.   
 
The first project that we propose to undertake is the roofing of the gazebo.  The roof was not 
replaced when the structure was rehabilitated several years ago.  Two quotes were obtained to 
remove the existing shingles and replace them with singles to match the pavilion.  The low quote 
for the project was $2,745 from B & P Roofing.  A summary of quotes is shown in Table 1 below. 
 

Table 1.  Grant Park Gazebo Roof Bids 
 

Contractor              Cost 

B & P Roofing  $2,745  

Bauer Construction  $6,500 

 
Our current budget does not include funds for the roofing project.  A budget amendment is 
included on the June 27 council agenda to add the grant revenue of $2,745 from the Galena 
Foundation and an expense in the same amount. 
 
Thank you for your consideration.  Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you. 

 

Page 21 of 99



June 15, 2016 

 

Mark, 

Antique Town Rods is looking for a place to have a band play on Sat., July 16, 2016 which is the 

weekend of our car show. In the past we have had it at Country Inn & Suites which is a conflict 

this year.  Someone had suggested we have it at Grant Park in the large Pavilion. The band 

would play from 6:00 to 10:00 P.M.  A second option would be at Depot Park.  We are not 100% 

sure that we will have it at either location, but we would like to know if we are approved for 

one or both locations.   

Also, we need to change the location of our registration for the car show participants.  If the 

Depot building is not occupied at the time, could we use the first floor space on Saturday, July 

16 as a registration site?  We would allow the registrants and the public to use the restrooms 

while the building is open.  We would clean the restrooms when finished.   

Please let us know what the council has decided. You can contact me., Mary Jo Copeland, at 

815 541‐2313 or work at 815 777‐2697. 

Thank you, 

Mary Jo Copeland 

Page 22 of 99



Galena Elks Lodge #882 – Corn Roast Event Proposal 

 Date:  August 13, 2016  

 Time:  Noon to 6 pm 

 Venue:  Post Office Square between City Hall and Downtown Post Office 
(red brick area) 

 Benefit:  A portion of the proceeds will be given to the Peters and Bauer 
families. 

 Proposed Closures:  Green Street between Commerce and Water Streets 
(in front of Downtown Post Office) 

 Entertainment:  Local Bands  

o Sam Wooden 

o Ten Gallon Hat 

 Food:  Roasted Sweet Corn, Burgers, Brats, and French Fries 

 Refreshments:  Beer, Water, and Soda 

 Alcohol Policy:  Special Event Permit  

o Event will be fenced off with one entrance 

o Check ID’s and drink bracelets issued to 21 & over 

o Will sell drink and food tickets at entrance 

o Will only serve beer to people with tickets and bracelets 

o Will hire an officer to be on duty 

 Recycling: Recycling receptacles will be provided in accordance with the 
City Event Recycling Policy. 

 Clean up:  All garbage will be picked up after event concludes    (before 
dark) – no trace left. 

 Permits:  All necessary permits and insurance will be secured 

  

Page 23 of 99



 

Proposed Event Site Map 

Page 24 of 99



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    June 20, 2016 

RE:    Transit agreement 
 
For many years, Jo Daviess County Transit and The Workshop have provided public 
transportation services in the City of Galena for a fixed fee.  An agreement was developed 
and approved last year to memorialize the obligations of the parties and the cost of 
service.  The agreement term has expired and is ready for renewal.  The cost for service 
has remained fixed for years and no change is proposed.  We have budgeted for the full 
cost of service.  I recommend you approve the attached agreement.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 25 of 99



1 
 

General Public Transportation Agreement 
Between the City of Galena 

 and Jo Daviess County Transit 
Operated by The Workshop 

 
 
The Agreement is made and entered into on this ______day of ____________ by and between the City 
of Galena, a Municipal Corporation (hereinafter called “City”) and Jo Daviess County Transit, a County 
General Public Transportation System, operated by The Workshop, a 501.3.C Non-For-Profit Agency 
(Hereinafter called “Jo Daviess County Transit”) 
 

Recitals: 
 
WHEREAS: City desires to continue and expand its General Public Transportation Service; and  
 

WHEREAS: Jo Daviess County Transit has been approved by the City to provide general public 
transportation service in the City of Galena; and  
 

WHEREAS: the City has provided a sum of $9,996.00 to Jo Daviess county Transit to continue and 
expand general public transportation service in the City.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual agreements and covenants 
herein contained, The City of Galena and Jo Daviess County Transit hereby agree as follows: 
 

Section 1: Term of Agreement 
 
The term of this agreement shall be from ____May 1, 2016___through __April 30, 2017______ 
 

Section 2: Scope of Service 
 
Jo Daviess County Transit agrees to provide general public transportation service for the City of Galena 
as follows:  
 

A. Demand/Responsive – Curb to Curb and Origin to Destination upon Request. 
 

B. Jo Daviess County Transit shall continue current service and expand service as needed to meet the 
expanding public transportation needs of residents of the City. 

 

The scheduled service will start at 9:00 A.M. and end at 1:00 P.M. on Mondays, Tuesdays, 
Wednesdays, Thursdays, and Fridays and start at 9:30 A.M. and end at 12:30 P. M. on Saturdays 
during the term of this agreement. 
 

The service will not operate on New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, 
Country Fair Weekend, Thanksgiving Day nor the day after, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, and New 
Year’s Eve.  
 

Jo Daviess County Transit will file with the City and accurate record of the number of one way trips 
provided to passengers, for each and every day of operation. The record will also indicate the reason 

Page 26 of 99



2 
 

for the trip, i.e. medical, shopping, work or social. The record will be submitted to the city 
Administrator at the end of each month on a form agreed to by both parties.  
 

C. Labor and Costs: Jo Daviess County Transit will be responsible for all costs and expenses 
including payroll, insurance, equipment, and repairs during the term of this agreement. 
 

D. Equipment: Jo Daviess County will use one or two, as needed, 14 passenger, handicapped 
accessible lift equipped vehicle(s) to provide service.  
 

E. Vehicles: The vehicles will be licensed in the State of Illinois and shall operate in compliance with 
all applicable State and Federal regulations and requirements for licensing, inspections, and 
insurance for public transportation. All vehicles must be kept in proper repair and sanitary 
condition. Each vehicle shall bear the name and telephone number of the Jo Daviess County 
Transit System.  
 

F. Drivers: Jo Daviess County Transit shall use only trained employees. Jo Daviess County Transit 
shall further certify that each employee assigned to drive a vehicle, possesses a valid Driver’s 
License and/or other such licenses as may be required by law or regulation.  
 

G. Employee Appearance: Jo Daviess County Transit shall require employees to be courteous at 
all times, clothing shall be as neat and clean as practical.  
 

H. Standard of Performance: All of the Jo Daviess County Transit’s responsibilities under this 
Agreement shall be performed to the satisfaction of the City. The City agrees to undertake its 
responsibilities under this Agreement to the satisfaction of the Jo Daviess County Transit.  
 

I. Fares: During the term of this Agreement, Jo Daviess County Transit agrees to charge a fare of 
no more than fifty cents (.50) for each one way passenger trip or Jo Daviess County Transit may 
invoice other entities for the fare. All Fares received by Jo Daviess County Transit shall become 
the property of Jo Daviess county Transit.  
 

Section 3 Schedule of Performance 
 

Jo Daviess County Transit shall perform those services set forth in Section 2 entitled Scope of Service. 
The Schedule of Performance may be modified by mutual written agreement of the City and Jo Daviess 
County Transit. If Jo Daviess County Transit does not reasonably satisfy the Schedule of Performance, 
the City may exercise its rights as specified in Section 10. 
 

Section 4: Funding 
 

Jo Daviess County Transit shall be compensated by the City in the sum of Nine Thousand, Nine Hundred 
and Ninety Six and 00/100 dollars ($9,996.00) Local Matching Funds for full performance of the terms of 
this Agreement. Said Sum shall be payable pro rata during the term of the Agreement in 12 monthly 
installments of $833.00. This is a fixed fee Agreement. Total compensation to be received by Jo Daviess 
County Transit from the City shall not exceed the sum Nine Thousand, Nine Hundred and Ninety Six and 
00/100 dollars ($9,996.00).  
 
Compensation under this Agreement is considered funding of the last resort and is not intended to 
replace other State and Federal program obligation. 

Page 27 of 99



3 
 

 
Section 5: Jo Daviess County Transit 

 
Jo Daviess County Transit shall perform all work and services described herein as an independent 
contractor and not as an officer, agent, servant or employee of the City. Jo Daviess County Transit shall 
have exclusive control of and the exclusive right to control the details of the services and work performed 
hereunder and all persons performing the same and shall be solely responsible for the acts and 
omissions of its officers, agents, employees, contractors, and subcontractors, if any. Nothing herein shall 
be construed as creating a partnership or joint venture between City and Jo Daviess County Transit.  
 

Section 6: Non-Assignment 
 
Jo Daviess County Transit shall not assign, transfer or convey this Agreement or Jo Daviess County 
Transit’s rights, duties or obligations hereunder or any part thereof without the pervious written consent of 
the City. In the event Jo Daviess County Transit attempts to assign, transfer, convey or otherwise alter 
this Agreement or Jo Daviess County’s rights, duties or obligations hereunder or any part thereof without 
the prior written consent of the City, City may, at this option, terminate this Agreement immediately.  
 

Section 7: Insurance 
 
Jo Davies County Transit shall, for the period of this Agreement, carry and maintain in full force and 
effect, insurance in such company or companies while it is performing hereunder, in the following types 
and amounts:      
 

 Type of Insurance     Amount 
 PERSONAL INJURY & PROPERTY   Combined Single Limit 
 DAMAGE LIABILITY INSURANCE   $1,000,000.00 Per Occurrence 
 WORKMAN’S COMPENSATION   Full Statutory Limits 
 Jo Daviess County Transit System employees only. 

 
Section 8: Indemnification and Hold Harmless 

 
Jo Daviess County Transit agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City of Galena, it’s officers, 
employees, agents and servants (except for the indemnitee’s action of gross negligence or willful 
misconduct), from and against any and all liability, claims, demands, actions or suits of whatever 
character or kind, arising or resulting from, or in any way connected with, Jo Daviess County Transit’s 
performance of this Agreement, the operations of Jo Daviess County Transit, it’s agents, employees, or 
subcontractors, or the failure of Jo Daviess County Transit to comply with the provisions and 
requirements of all applicable.  
 

Section 9: City’s Obligations 
 
During the duration of this Agreement, the City agrees to:  
 

a. Grant Jo Daviess County Transit vehicles access to any and all City streets for boarding and de-
boarding purposes.  
 

b. Pay Jo Daviess county Transit the full amount of invoices within 30 days of the invoice date.  
 

Page 28 of 99



4 
 

 
Section 10: Terminations 

 

A. In the event either party to this Agreement defaults in the performance of any of the agreements 
or covenants to be kept, done or performed under the terms of this Agreement, the party alleged 
to be in default shall be notified in writing of the nature of such default. Within five (5) days 
following such notice, the party alleged to be in default shall:  

 

Correct the fault; or in the case of a default not capable of being corrected within 5 days, 
commence correcting the default with due diligence on terms and conditions acceptable 
to both parties.  
 

B. In the event either party fails to correct the default as provided above, the non-defaulting party, 
without further notice, shall have all the following rights and remedies which the non-defaulting 
party may exercise singly or in combination;  

 

The right to declare that this Agreement together with all rights granted hereunder are 
terminated, effective upon such date as the non-defaulting party shall designate. 
 

The right to enter into an agreement with others, to perform the services otherwise to be 
performed by Jo Daviess County Transit hereunder, or to perform such services itself.  

 
Section 11: Notices 

 

All notices required or contemplated by this Agreement shall be personally served or mailed, postage 
prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to the parties as follows:  
 
 City:       City Administrator, Mark Moran  
      101 Green Street—PO Box 310, Galena, IL. 61036 
 
 Jo Daviess County Transit:   Transit Director, Kathleen Gable 
      Jo Daviess County Transit  
      710 S. West Street – PO Box 6087, Galena IL. 61036 
 
Or such other address as the parties may designate in writing.  
 

Section 12: Waiver 
 
A waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute or operate as a waiver of 
any other breach of such provision or of any other provisions, nor shall any failure to enforce any 
provision hereof operate as a waiver of such provision of any other provision.  
 

 
 

Section 13: Amendment 
 
This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written agreement duly executed by both parties 
hereto or their representatives 

 
  

Page 29 of 99



5 
 

Section 14: Termination 
 

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by either party following a 15 day written notice to 
the other party of such intent to terminate.  
 

Section: 15 Entirety 
 
This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties as to the matters contained herein. 
Any oral representations or modifications concerning this Agreement shall be of no force and effect.  
 
 
 
 
Dated: ___________________________ 
 
 
 
City of Galena, a Municipal Corporation  
 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
                           Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest to:  
 
 
_________________________________ 
                          City Clerk 
 
 
 
Jo Daviess County Transit 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
                        Transit Director 
 
 
 
Witness:  
 
 
_________________________________ 
                         
 

Page 30 of 99



RECREATION PARK
Strong support from committee

PRO:
• Parking
• Water is available
• Visible location
• Established park
• Prep for fencing minimal
• Many support

Near volleyball
• Small area
• No room for expansion
• City crew needs to mow around
• No trees for shade

Near swimming pool
• No room for expansion
• City crew needs to mow around
• Pool noise may scare some dogs

Old pool area
• Larger area
• Some room for expansion
• City crew needs to mow around
• No trees for shade

TURTLE POND
Little support from committee

PRO:
• Natural open area
• Off-street parking
• Few trees established for shade

CON:
• Water could be expensive
• Expansion may not be possible
• Distance from town

SCENIC MEADOWS UPPER
Some support from committee

PRO:
• Natural open area
• Areas for trails
• Low traffic
• Off-street parking
• Many trees established

CON:
• Walkway may be expensive
• Difficult terrain
• Water not close

SCENIC MEADOWS LOWER
Most support from committee

PRO:
• Natural open area
• Areas for trails
• Could be a benefit for future 

homes
• Stream for water
• Water source available
• Low traffic
• Prep for fencing minimal
• No need to mowing
• Off-street parking
• Many trees established
• No houses close
• Many support

CON:
• May be prone to flooding
• Unsure of future development

June 8, 2016

Dear Council members:
The Galena Dog Park group is looking for a minimum 30,000 sq. ft. of city-owned land to build a fenced-in dog 

park where dogs of all sizes can run, chase, sniff, wrestle and in general be dogs, unconstrained by leashes. This 
would be an area owned by the City of Galena and maintained by the members of the Galena Dog Park group.

Park organizers are committed to continual fundraising to establish and care for the park once created. The 
group has obtained support from individuals, dog-related local businesses and corporations. We guarantee that 
we will not be asking the City of Galena for funds. This will be fully-funded before the first stage is developed–
the basic structure of fencing and grass. 

The Galena Dog Park will rely on the ongoing volunteer assistance of dog owners with cleanup and routine 
maintenance and to make sure dog owners follow the rules. 

Could you give us a direction to proceed? Would you consider a one-year trial? We will come back to the city 
with design ideas for approval. We will come to the city each step of the way.

GDP group Chair Jane Holland, 815-238-6010

The Galena ARC Dog Park Committee
The Galena ARC Dog Park Committee is a committee of the Galena Art & Recreation 

Center, a non-profit, independent organization established in 1968. The Committee was formed 
to: 

•Maintain an association of interested persons, 

•Recruit and retain volunteers,

•Stimulate the use of the Galena Dog Park through marketing and promotion,

•Host recreational and educational activities at the park,

•Encourage and receive gifts, endowments, bequests and fund raise for the Galena Dog 
Park’s creation and amenities,

•Cooperate with the Galena maintenance department and support the care of the dog park

•Funding the purchase of Equipment as agreed upon by the City of Galena

Galena ARC Dog Park Committee 
Jane Holland, President
Christy Hopper, Recording Secretary and Fundraising co-chair
Sarah Petersen, Treasurer and Galena ARC Executive Director
Chris DeNino, Logistics
Jim Webster, Publicity
Gail DeMoss-Johnson, Fundraising Co-chair

Page 31 of 99



Galena-Jo Daviess County Historical Society & Museum, 211 S. Bench St., Galena, Illinois  61036 
                                     Phone 815-777-9129        Fax 815-777-9131            
                    www.galenahistorymuseum.org       info@galenahistorymuseum.org 

Nancy Breed 
   Executive Director 

 
 

Board of Directors 
 

  Christine Harris 
President 

 

 Mary Jo Losey    
Vice President 

 

Pam Doyle        
Treasurer 

 

 Vickie Gratton             
Secretary  

 

 

Chris Allendorf 
 

Mike Blaum 
 

Bill Butts 
 

Steve Coates 
 

Marge Cooke 
 

Bill Karberg 
 

Kathleen Morgan 

 

MEMO: June 22, 2016 
 
 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor Renner and the City of Galena Councilpersons 
 
 
 
 

FROM: Dan McCarthy, Event Co-Chair Denise Spielman, Event Co-Chair 
  Director of Marketing  Retail Manager 
 

 
RE:  “Heroes for History” Event Authorization: Sat., Sept. 10, 2016 
 
The Historical Society thanks the Galena City Council for approving the “Heroes 
for History” proposal at the last Council meeting on June 13. That decision was the 
springboard for a great deal of event planning. 
 
Now, after further conferring with Fire Chief Randy Beadle, Police Chief Lori Hun-
tington and City Administrator Mark Moran, our committee respectfully requests   
the City’s approval for the following items: 
 
1) Permission to use the 100 block of Green Street, between the Post Office and 

City Hall, as the pre-run and post-run staging area, rather than on Bench Street. 
The race would still start and finish on Bench, but activities such as registration, 
announcements, speeches, ceremonies, awards, etc. would be best done on 
Green Street. There is far more space at that location, and looking westward, 
participants and spectators would have a dramatic view of the course and the 
Green Street stairs going up.  

 
2) Chief Randy Beadle strongly advocates closing Bench and Prospect streets for 

safety purposes while the race/walk is actually going on. Of course, accommo-
dations will be made for any special issues or emergencies that might arise. We 
expect the streets to be closed to traffic and parking from 6 a.m. to noon. 

 
3) Permission to use City Hall (the City Council meeting audience area) for race 

packet pickup from 6 to 9 p.m., Friday, Sept. 9, and on race morning from 7 a.m. 
to 10 a.m. 

 
Our event committee believes these adjustments in our original plan will result in a 
more successful, safer event. We are available to answer any questions you may 
have and thank you for your consideration. 

Page 32 of 99



 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council and City Administrator 

FROM: Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE: June 23, 2016 

RE: Cal. No. 16PD-02, Applicant: Adam Johnson, 211 Fourth Street, on behalf of Owner: Grace 
Episcopal Church, 107 S Prospect Street, Galena, IL 61036.  Location: Parcel: 22-100-561-00, Lots 7, 9, 
11 and South Half of Lot 5, Block 3 of the Original City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.  Common 
Address: 107 South Prospect Street, Galena, IL 61036.  Request to rezone to Planned Unit Development 
for a site, with an underlying default district of Low Density Residential, to allow a building addition with 
associated site improvements. 
  
Summary: 
 
The subject property is located at 107 South Prospect Street and is commonly known as Grace Episcopal 
Church.  The property consists of approximately 0.4 acres or 17,900 square feet and is situated near the 
intersection of Hill and Prospect Streets, nestled in a quarried alcove amongst surrounding mixed uses 
overlooking the Downtown Commercial area.  A narrative is included with locational and district maps 
from the applicant to describe the scope of the project for your understanding.  The district map colors are 
explained as:  orange = LDR zoning and blue = DC zoning. 
 
The applicants are requesting rezoning of the property from Low Density Residential to Planned Unit 
Development for a site with an underlying default district of Low Density Residential and approval of a 
Preliminary PUD Plan which includes a three-story, attached addition to the South and associated site 
improvements.  Rezoning to a PUD is the most appropriate process to address some of the deviations related 
to bulk and intensity standards for the site and district.  As per the PUD section of the City Code, the City 
can allow deviations from the default district standards if certain amenities are provided in the plan by the 
applicant.  Deviations are listed in the Zoning Comments below. 
 
The property sits within an existing transitional area from downtown land uses to the Southeast to 
residential, guest accommodations and indoor institutional land uses to the North and West. The proposed 
uses will not change from the existing uses on the site.  The church presently utilizes the rectory, located 
cater-cornered from the church, as their gathering / education / activity area.  If approved, they will sell the 
rectory as single-family dwelling and continue those activities in the new addition.  There is not an expected 
increase in intensity for the area due to this locational change. 
 
On June 8, 2016, the Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing for this request.  After the hearing and 
discussion, the Board (one member absent) unanimously approved a motion to send a positive 
recommendation to the City Council to rezone to Planned Unit Development with an underlying district of 
Low Density Residential and the Preliminary Plan with a condition that an appropriate geotechnical 
engineering study be performed and demonstrated to the City before a building permit be issued. 
 
Please also see the formal recommendation, attached after this memo, from the Zoning Board of Appeals 
for your review.   
 

Page 33 of 99



Staff Comments: 
 
Engineering:  Storm water facilities shall be demonstrated in further detail with construction drawings and 
may tie into existing storm drains on the site that connect to the City system.  Geotechnical study is not 
required at this point of the process but is recommended that a Geotechnical Engineer be at hand during 
excavation / quarrying operation.  Construction drawings by qualified, licensed professionals shall be 
submitted for review before building permit is issued.  Construction / quarrying methods shall be 
demonstrated before building permit is issued; any blasting is prohibited. 
 
Fire Prevention:  Proposed concept appears to meet fire & life safety requirements.  Further detail review 
will be held with construction documents and approval needed before building permit is issued. 
 
Building: Stamped, professional construction drawings must be submitted for final review with Staff before 
building permit is issued.  ADA compliance is required.  Egress walkway is called-out on drawing for the 
3rd story fire escape; more detail is needed and can be submitted at time of construction document submittal.   
 
Zoning:  Site plan review indicates compliance with adopted plans and policies, such as the Comprehensive 
Plan and does not conflict with any official map, trail or park plans of the City.   
 
Meets the land use regulations as provided in §154.405 as existing, non-conforming land use.   
 
Natural resource protection standard for steep slopes is met by protecting approximately 84% of the slopes 
over 30%, by which a minimum of 80% protection is required. No significant tree removal is expected and 
does not qualify for natural resource protection.   
 
Building, Engineering and Zoning Departments are aware of, and do consider the concerns of the 
surrounding property owners regarding the stability of the hillside above the property if quarrying takes 
place.  The staff believes that geotechnical studies / explorations are appropriate for determining suitable 
bearing capacity for foundational elements as well as determining lateral forces that act upon the proposed 
retaining / foundation walls adjacent to the quarried hillside.  Licensed, qualified design professionals shall 
demonstrate that the construction methods and suitability of the subsurface conditions are safe and adequate 
to construct the proposed project before any building permit will be issued.  In order to address the concerns 
of the surrounding property owners, Staff recommends that the City Council considers requiring an 
appropriate geotechnical study be conducted and provided to the City, as a condition for approval, before a 
building permit is issued.  The purpose of this recommendation is so that the applicant can confidently 
proceed with the extensive design process after having approval of the conceptual level of zoning and to 
alleviate concerns of the public.   
 
Meets lighting and landscaping standards provided in §154.603-605.  Parking standards identified in 
§154.601 will be discussed later in the review.   
 
Performance standards provided in§154.701 through §154.713 are met; the permanent state of the 
development is not expected to violate performance standards listed in this Chapter.   
 
Any signage adjustments can be administratively approved by the Zoning Administrator.   
 
The project appears to be organized harmoniously and efficiently in relation to the topography, the character 
of the adjoining property (similar to adjacent properties like Turner Hall and the Fire Station), and the size 
and type of buildings.  It is not expected to impede the normal and orderly development of the surrounding 
property for uses permitted in this Code.  
 

Page 34 of 99



The landscape and natural conditions of the site, outside of the proposed utilized portions of the property, 
shall be preserved in its natural state and the plan does reflect this.  Sufficient screening and buffering are 
proposed and landscaping meets the required landscaping points.  The scale, character and orientation of 
the proposed structure is compatible with the existing structure on the property and with nearby properties.    
 
The memorial garden to be relocated, is considered an existing non-conforming land use as Outdoor 
Institutional (private cemetery).  It is advised to request that the Church ensure compliance with any State 
/ Federal regulations with cremains (25 known cremains are present at the site) as well as seek approval 
from the surviving families of the deceased before relocating.  Cremains are proposed to be relocated to the 
other side of the Church in a columbarium. 
 
One purpose of Planned Unit Development for a site is to provide design flexibility in cases of unique 
single-use projects where the provisions are not available under regular zoning district standards.  Per our 
ordinance, this type of mechanism should only be used when long-term community benefits, which may be 
achieved through high-quality planned development will be derived.  In this case, an innovative design is 
needed to provide a solution for a property, with a well-established land use that is operationally distributed 
on two separate parcels, to consolidate its operations / activities onto one parcel in the interest of efficiency, 
safety and harmony.  In essence, the PUD mechanism allows the City Council to establish a specific district 
for this property with its own district standards.  The underlying district standards are utilized as a basis of 
comparison to have a place to begin.  Deviations from the default district (LDR) standards include: 

- Floor Area Ratio: LDR requires 0.25, proposed FAR is 0.438 
- Minimum Lot Area: LDR requires 40,000 sq. ft., proposed is 17,900 sq. ft. 
- Building setbacks: Per §154.107(D)(4), vertical and horizontal expansion is allowed on a wall for a non-

conforming site / structure as long as the existing setback is at least 75% of the default district’s standard, 
which in this case is 30 feet.  The existing setback of the rear of the building is approximately 21 feet, or 
70% of the required setback. 

- Maximum Building Height: Per 154.206(B), churches are allowed up to 6 stories or 75 feet, provided for 
every foot over the allowed maximum height for the district, one additional foot must be added to the rear 
and side setbacks.  This would make the rear setback requirement 36 feet; however, if the existing setback 
is approved as a deviation, then perhaps the proposed height can be deviated as the gable will be less 
obtrusive if it is set further back into the hill, thus providing more of a view for the properties uphill.  It is 
noteworthy that the existing ridge of the church is the same height of the proposed addition’s gable height.  
Additionally, the definition of height of building is the uppermost habitable floor, or highest point on the 
front façade, whichever is greater.  Arguably, the uppermost habitable floor height is 27 feet and the highest 
front façade would be precedent by the existing structure, therefore making the structure under the default 
maximum height for the district (30 ft).  I defer to the board for your interpretation.  Ultimately, the Council 
can establish the maximum allowable height for this property if approved as a PUD. 

- Expansion of non-conforming use:  Non-residential uses in a residential district are allowed expansion up 
to 10% of the existing, which would be exceeded in the proposed. §154.106(C)(2). 

- Parking requirements: Default district standards in §154.601 require 25 ft. throat length and much more 
off-street parking than the site can allow.  Furthermore, expansion regulations in §154.107(D) require site 
be brought up to compliance.  Existing parking is stacked in the small drive area, the proposed parking will 
create 5 proper stalls that meet regulations in our Code.  Additionally, 2 of those stalls will be ADA spaces.  
Deviation is required, even though there is no practical room on the property for more parking, the parking 
situation is improved compared to the existing conditions with this proposal. 
 
This can all be approved by the City Council as a deviation from the default district standards with 
mitigation of items (c) & (e) as noted below in approval criteria under §154.301(A)(5).  It is my opinion 
that the proposed development would exceed the deviation requirements to an amount that justifies this 
mitigation.   
 

Page 35 of 99



Approval Criteria & Recommendation: Zoning Board of Appeals comments included below in italics. 
 

Zoning Map Amendment - In determining whether the proposed zoning map amendment shall be 
approved, the following factors shall be considered: 

1. Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption; 

This particular piece of property, because of its elevation relative to surrounding properties, 
is different topographically and could be more closely related to the downtown district. 

2. Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due to installation of 
public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, development transitions, etc.; 

There has not been a change of character in the immediate vicinity. 
 

3. Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining characteristics of 
the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts on the capacity or safety of the 
portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking problems, or environmental impacts that 
the new zone may generate such as excessive storm water runoff, water, air or noise pollution, excessive 
nighttime lighting, or other nuisances; 

Churches are more often found amongst residential areas and their uses are compatible. 
 

4. Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the implementation of the goals and 
policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and the policies, intents and requirements of 
this code, and other city regulations and guidelines; 

This proposal is very much consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the property is part 
of the historical fabric of the community. 

5. Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made available concurrent with 
the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone; 

The proposal has demonstrated that adequate public facilities are available with this request. 
 

6. Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the surrounding 
community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or 

The design fits clearly within the site and is appropriate. 
 

7. Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be benefits derived 
by the community or area by the proposed rezoning. 

The accessibility issues that the Church faces are not going-away; the proposal demonstrates a 
solution for this need. 
 
 
 

Page 36 of 99



And; 

Planned unit development zoning should be used only when long-term community benefits, which may be 
achieved through high quality planned development, will be derived. Specific benefits that would support 
a PUD zoning include, but are not limited to: 

1. More efficient infrastructure; The proposal helps that intersection with modes of travel. 
 
2. Reduced traffic demands; The proposal will create more off-street parking. 
 
3. A greater quality and quantity of public and/or private open space; n/a 
 
4. Other recreational amenities; n/a 
 
5. Needed housing types and/or mix; Abandoning the house across the street and returning 

it to single family dwelling would be a benefit. 
 
6. Innovative designs; and/or This proposal uses innovative design to address the physical 

issues faced by the Church. 
 
7. Protection and/or preservation of natural resources. This proposal protects / preserves 

natural resources according to our Code. 

Preliminary PUD Plan – A preliminary development plan application shall demonstrate conformance with 
all of the following: 

a. The ODP review criteria in division (B) above; Plan meets the ODP criteria. 
 

b. The applicable preliminary plat criteria in Chapter 153, Subdivision Regulations; n/a 
 

c. The applicable site plan review criteria in § 154.914; If deviations are approved, plan meets 
site plan review criteria. 
 

d. The approved ODP, if applicable; n/a 
 

e. An appropriate, specific density/intensity of uses for all areas included in the preliminary 
plan approval; and Density / Intensity of proposed may be appropriate for a land use that 
has existed for over 160 years.  Return of rectory to LDR will reduce intensity of use at 
that property and relocate it to the main site where the same intensity of use is already 
present when the congregation meets.  The bulk of intensity of development at the site can 
be determined with this process by the Council – deviations from the default district 
standards can be approved. 
 

f. For a PUD/TND District, the area of the plan is at least five acres in size or as specified in 
an applicable approved ODP, or as identified in  § 154.301. n/a 

 

Page 37 of 99

http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Galena,%20Illinois%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A27d2$cid=illinois$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_chapter153$3.0#JD_chapter153
http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Galena,%20Illinois%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A1655$cid=illinois$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_154.914$3.0#JD_154.914
http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Galena,%20Illinois%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A1655$cid=illinois$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_154.301$3.0#JD_154.301


Deviations from Default District Standards - The Zoning Board of Appeals may recommend that the 
City Council deviate from the default district standards subject to the provision of any of the community 
amenities listed below. In order for the Zoning Board of Appeals to recommend, and the City Council to 
approve, a deviation from the default district standards, the listed amenities shall be provided in excess of 
what would otherwise be required by this code. These amenities include: 
 

a. Transportation amenities including but not limited to: off-street trails, bike and pedestrian 
amenities, or transit oriented improvements, including school and transit bus shelters; n/a 
 
b. Open space, agricultural land reservations, or land dedication of 20% or greater; n/a 
 
c. Community facilities or provision of public services beyond those required for 
development within the PUD;  The church presently provides community facilities as well as 
additional outreach for helping those in need and providing space for AA meetings. A complete 
list of the church’s public offerings is included in this packet with the narrative. 
 
d. The provision of affordable housing for moderate, low and very low income households 
pursuant to HUD definitions for no less than 15 years; and n/a 
 
e. Other amenities, in excess of the minimum standards required by this code, that the City 
Council specifically finds provide sufficient community benefit to offset the proposed 
deviation. The proposed project exceeds the minimum standards required by the code. 

 
Cal. No. 16PD-02 
The Zoning Board of Appeals can recommend to the City Council, in the form of a motion, approval 
or denial of requests for Map Amendments and Preliminary PUD plans.  If the Board would like to 
recommend approval of the requests, motions to approve which include pertinent facts in the cases 
and reasons for the recommendations should be entertained. The recommendations will then be 
forwarded to the City Council for final action. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that this Zoning Board of Appeals does recommend to 
the City Council of the City of Galena that this request by Grace Church to rezone to Planned Unit 
Development for a site, with an underlying default district of Low Density Residential, to allow a 
building addition with associated site improvements should be approved with the following 
condition: 
 

1. An appropriate geotechnical engineering study of the site be conducted and 
provided to the City before a building permit is issued. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 8th day of June, A.D. 2016, by the Galena Zoning Board of 
Appeals by a vote of 6 ayes, 0 nays, 1 absent, 0 abstain, 0 recused. 
 
 

Page 38 of 99



Page 39 of 99



Page 40 of 99



Page 41 of 99



Page 42 of 99



Page 43 of 99



Page 44 of 99



Page 45 of 99



0 150 300 450 600 750

Feet

Page 46 of 99



Turner
Hall

Fire
Staon

Church

Rectory
Church

Church

Church
Guest House

Guest House

Guest House

Guest House

Page 47 of 99



Application for Planned Development Narrative    April 18, 2016

Grace Episcopal Church, 107 South Prospect Street, Galena, Illinois

Grace Episcopal Church is applying for a planned development to allow the construction of an addition and expand parking 
facilities.  The addition would replace the current rectory on the opposite corner and allow the creation of expanded 
accessibility to the church, its facilities, and functions.  The church and rectory have accessibility issues which presently are 
keeping some of its congregation from engaging in the full fellowship of the community and may be preventing others from 
joining.  The congregation feels strongly that accessibility is becoming an existential issue for the continued use of the church 
and that an addition is the best course to provide a viable facility.  The design presented proposes a minimal footprint on the 
site, set back from the street to provide a level parking area for several vehicles to ease accessibility.

The proposed design is for a three story addition to the existing church to the rear and left, adjacent to the Sacristy.  The rear 
of the addition’s foundation would extend just above present grade.  The addition would be of appropriate architectural 
design, as already approved by the city historic preservation commission.  The first floor of the addition would include a large 
community room.  The second floor would contain restrooms, offices, and conference room.  The third floor would be a large 
open classroom.  An accessible lift will be installed to allow access to all three floor.

It is in the interest of the City of Galena to approve this application for Planned Development zoning because Grace Episcopal 
Church is an important community resource and the historic church is an iconic building in Galena.  Its continued viability 
needs to be supported by allowing an addition which will rehabilitate the property into a modern, accessible facility.  Also, by 
returning the current rectory to the residential housing market, that property returns to the tax rolls and will be available as 
housing. The intensity of use will not be increased, but combined on one site.

The comprehensive plan provides support for this application.  The community profile points out that Galena’s population is 
getting older, which increases the concern about accessibility at historic structures.  This is the situation that the congregation 
is trying to address by building the addition.  To realize the church’s mission of inclusion and service to community, they 
must reach out to the community by providing a facility which addresses the needs of an older population and provides space 
where all are accommodated. Complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act is an important goal for all buildings in 
Galena and should be supported by the community.

The Planned Development application supports the comprehensive plan goals for the city in many ways.  It supports the first 
goal of economic development by protecting a historic structure, maintaining a business, or current use, in an existing 
building (for which a new use would be difficult to find considering any new commercial use would face the same 
accessibility and parking issues).  It supports the goal of providing additional housing and parking.  It supports the goal of 
historic preservation by maintaining and improving a historic property and returning a house to original use.

The Planned Development application is for a unique single-use project for which increased zoning flexibility is needed to 
achieve many of the specific benefits for which a PUD is created, as stated in the zoning ordinance.  Those benefits include 
creating more efficient infrastructure by concentrating a non-conforming use from the existing two sites separated by a city 
street onto a single site, providing additional off-street parking, and allowing innovative design.

The Planned Development application is required for this proposal because the addition cannot be built under conventional 
zoning because there are five deviations required from the current standard zoning district, low density residential, LDR.  The 
project complies with the nine other standards of the LDR.  These deviations are reduce lot size, reduced rear yard setback, 
increased floor area ratio, increased maximum expansion of non-conforming use, and reduced parking requirements.  These 
deviations are allowed to be offset by the community amenities provided by the church beyond what would be required by the 
typical LDR property.  These amenities include providing space for community groups such as AA, providing community 
outreach and support, work through the united churches association of Galena, and other charitable and service programs.

This development would be adequately buffered and adverse impacts on adjacent properties have been mitigated by providing 
additional landscaping points above the amount required.  This application meets all the criteria for zoning review, provides 
adequate amenities to offset the deviations required, and furthers the goals of the comprehensive plan, and so should be 
approved.

Page 48 of 99



Application for Planned Development Statement Regarding the Review Criteria May 31, 2016 

Grace Episcopal Church, 107 Prospect Street, Galena, Illinois 

Section 154.920 (C)   Approval criteria. In determining whether the proposed amendment shall 
be approved, the following factors shall be considered: 

         (1)   Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption; 

There does not appear to be a definable error in the original zoning, although some arguments 
could be made for zoning the Church, Turner Hall and the Fire Station as Downtown 
Commercial.  The original zoning placed the Church in LDR. 

         (2)   Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due to 
installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, 
development transitions, etc.; 

There has not been a change in the character of the area.  The developmental transition is the 
change in accessibility codes at the State and Federal level which indicate the need for 
improvements for accessibility to a historic structure so that it can continue in a lawful and 
accessible manner. 

         (3)   Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining 
characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts on the 
capacity or safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking problems, 
or environmental impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive storm water runoff, 
water, air or noise pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, or other nuisances; 

The current use is compatible with the neighborhood.  The buildings and uses immediately 
adjacent to the east are public facilities.  The residential neighbors are mostly situated above the 
church on the hill and separated by grade.  The re-zoning will not create any new or additional 
intensity of use; it will concentrate the existing use, and provide additional off-street parking to 
lessen the existing on-street parking use. 

         (4)   Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the implementation 
of the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and the policies, 
intents and requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines; 

The proposal is supported by the goals of the comprehensive plan economic goals of protecting 
historic structures, maintaining current businesses in their existing historic structures, providing 
additional parking and returning a historic house to its intended use to increase the housing 
available.  The proposal has been approved by the Historic District Commission. 

         (5)   Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made available 
concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone; 

Adequate public facilities are on site. 

         (6)   Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or 

Page 49 of 99



There is adequate site for the proposed addition. 

         (7)   Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be 
benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning. 

Grace Episcopal Church is one of the most important historic buildings in Galena.  It is in the 
best interest on the city to assist the congregation in maintaining its use and viability as a church.  
To do this, the church must be made accessible. 

Since the church was founded in the 1850s, the city has derived benefits of its congregation and 
charity, to do good works for the City and worldwide.  The congregation will continue to do 
those good works for Galena.  The main benefit to the community that the church provides is the 
maintenance of the historic structure, which would be difficult to rehabilitate into another use if 
the present use is not supported. 

Additional benefits include community outreach listed on their website such as: 

Grace Episcopal Church donates through an organized committee to local, national & 
international charities and causes through the earnings of its endowment and funding drives to 
such organizations as the Galena Arts & Recreation Center (ARC), Galena Food Pantry, Habitat 
for Humanity, United Churches Hunger Fund, Heifer International, Shelter Care Ministry of 
Rockford, relief efforts such as Haitian Relief & Katrina Relief.  It provides outreach to its 
partner Diocese in Sudan. 

The Church hosts many community events, many organized by its Arts Council, such as 
quarterly art exhibits featuring local artists and music events such as hosting and organizing the 
Festival for the Arts. 

The Church provides religious ministries such as Christian Education and Bible study groups.  It 
provides discussion groups and activities such as Aging Gracefully, its series on growing older, 
and a knitting group that donates its products.  Its group Servants Through Prayer meets to offer 
prayer for world needs. 

The Church has an ongoing Education of Ministry program which provides a four year course of 
religious education. 

The Church is active in the community English as a Second Language (ESL) program assisting 
local Spanish speakers to learn English. 

The Church provides space for AA, NA, and Al-Anon meeting on a weekly basis. 

Grace Church members support or are active volunteers and members of Rotary, the Elks, the 
Kiwanis, the JDCF, the Cemetery Walk, the Galena Historical Society, the Galena Public 
Library, the Women of Commitment and Courage and docents at the Washburne House, to name 
a few.  During the year, there are few if any community charity activities members of Grace do 
not support or help. 

Page 50 of 99



A
d
a
m

 J
o
h

n
s
o
n

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re

c D
ra

w
in

gs
 re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
so

le
 p

ro
pe

rty
 o

f t
he

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
, r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

&
 u

se
 b

y 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
nl

y.

2
1
1
 F

o
u

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e
t,

 G
a
le

n
a
, 
Il
li
n

o
is

 6
1
0
3
6
-2

4
0
0

a
d
a
m

iz
s
o
3
3
3
@

g
m

a
il
.c

o
m

  
  
  
  
 8

1
5
/2

8
1
-1

5
7
7

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

ti
on

 S
ta

te
m

en
t

I c
er

ti
fy

 t
ha

t 
th

es
e 

pl
an

s 
we

re
 p

re
pa

re
d

by
 m

e 
& 

to
 t

he
 b

es
t 

of
 m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e

co
nf

or
m

 t
o 

Lo
ca

l, 
S

ta
te

, &
 N

at
io

na
l C

od
es

.
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

:  
   

   
A

da
m

 C
. J

oh
ns

on
Illi

no
is

 li
ce

ns
e 

nu
m

be
r: 

   
0

0
1-

0
14

98
6

ex
pi

ra
ti

on
 d

at
e: 

  
 

11/
30

/2
0

16

24
36

 a
da

m
iz

so
33

3@
gm

ai
l.c

om

sheet

S
it

e 
Pl

an
 F

or
 Z

on
in

g 
Re

vie
w 

fo
r N

ew
 P

la
nn

ed
 U

ni
t 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

G
ra

ce
 E

pi
sc

op
al

 C
hu

rc
h

10
7 

Pr
os

pe
ct

 S
tr

ee
t,

 G
al

en
a,

 Il
lin

oi
s 

6
10

36

3/18/16
revisions:
4/16/16

of 2

denotes Steep Slope Area

0 5' 10' 20'

A l l e y

P r o s p e c t       S t r e e t
90

95

100

105
110

115
120

125

130

North

Existing Site Plan
1" = 20'-0"

Grace
Church

Memorial
Garden

42.36'

43.07'

70
.0

2'

35.00'

20.00' 21.00'

9.
0

0
'

9.
0

0
'

9.
0

0
'

9.
0

0
'

9.
0

0
'

9.
0

0
'

9.
0

0
'

22
.12

'

20
.54'

20
.8

2'

15.70'

22.43'

24.20'

40
.5

0
'

provide two new
ornamental trees

landscaping as needed

25' front yard setback

relocate metal fencing along building
to provide protection from vehicles

remove Memorial Garden
& lower existing grade to

provide area for Parking

5' side yard setback

regrade existing area for access, create
path along building & down to new

retaining walls for access & maintenance

relocate ashes
from Memorial Garden
to new Columbarium,
located as appropriate

provide minimum 1/8" per foot slope
to drain, regrade existing paving &
provid new asphalt paving throughout

provide downcast lighting on building
as needed to light New Parking Area

ADA Entry to conform to required
grades as needed from New Parking Area

regrade existing area for access, create
path along building & down to new

retaining walls for access & maintenance

direct new south gutters
to storm water retention

behind/between new
retaining walls as possible

relocate stone retaining walls

regrade site , provide
retaining walls as needed

new deck at new 3rd Floor
to provide egress to grade,

allowed in Rear Yard setback

provide two new
ornamental trees

existing storm drainage into "chimney" catch basin
to reconfigured as required by city engineering.

provide new downcast
lighting on posts  as
needed to light New

Parking Area, two shown

95

115

3

1

36

Grace
Church

existing

N43º06'03"E  141.12'

105

S
44

º2
0

'3
4"

E 
 12

9.
42

'

36

12"

N4
5º

25
'5

0
"W

  1
32

.0
0

'

2

RELOCATE CATCH BASIN "A"

S42º00'00"W  138.76'

STORM GRATE "B"

110

CATCH BASIN "C"

connect sewer & water to existing,
expand & reconfigure existing MEP
as possible

120

New Parking

130

125

Existing
House

5

4

Existing
Garage

C i t y  A l l e y

Proposed Site Plan
1" = 10'-0"

0 5' 10' 20'

North

P r o s p e c t       S t r e e t

Existing
Garage

Existing
House

Key to Plantings

medium evergreen shrub, 5 pts.

tall deciduous shrub, 5 pts.

medium deciduous
tree, 15 pts.

tall evergreen tree, 40 pts.

tall deciduous shrub, 5 pts.

Legal Description
LOTS 11, 9, 7 AND THE SOUTH 1/2 OF LOT 5
BLOCK 3 OF THE ORIGINAL CITY OF GALENA,
JO DAVIESS COUNTY, ILLINOIS

Landscaping Points
New Paved Area & Building = 2,600 s.f.
40 pts/100' foundation x 150' =  60
40 pts/100' frontage x 35' =   14
20 pts/ parking space =   100
20 pts/1000 s.f. footprint x 1402 =  29
required total    203 pts

295 new points shown, 45% more than required

Proposed
Addition

1

Page 51 of 99



A
d
a
m

 J
o
h

n
s
o
n

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re

c D
ra

w
in

gs
 re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
so

le
 p

ro
pe

rty
 o

f t
he

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
, r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

&
 u

se
 b

y 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
nl

y.

2
1
1
 F

o
u

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e
t,

 G
a
le

n
a
, 
Il
li
n

o
is

 6
1
0
3
6
-2

4
0
0

a
d
a
m

iz
s
o
3
3
3
@

g
m

a
il
.c

o
m

  
  
  
  
 8

1
5
/2

8
1
-1

5
7
7

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

ti
on

 S
ta

te
m

en
t

I c
er

ti
fy

 t
ha

t 
th

es
e 

pl
an

s 
we

re
 p

re
pa

re
d

by
 m

e 
& 

to
 t

he
 b

es
t 

of
 m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e

co
nf

or
m

 t
o 

Lo
ca

l, 
S

ta
te

, &
 N

at
io

na
l C

od
es

.
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

:  
   

   
A

da
m

 C
. J

oh
ns

on
Illi

no
is

 li
ce

ns
e 

nu
m

be
r: 

   
0

0
1-

0
14

98
6

ex
pi

ra
ti

on
 d

at
e: 

  
 

11/
30

/2
0

16

24
36

 a
da

m
iz

so
33

3@
gm

ai
l.c

om

sheet

S
it

e 
Pl

an
 F

or
 Z

on
in

g 
Re

vie
w 

fo
r N

ew
 P

la
nn

ed
 U

ni
t 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

G
ra

ce
 E

pi
sc

op
al

 C
hu

rc
h

10
7 

Pr
os

pe
ct

 S
tr

ee
t,

 G
al

en
a,

 Il
lin

oi
s 

6
10

36

3/18/16
revisions:
4/16/16

of 2

17' / 17'
10' / 10'

30'
37'

40,000 s.f.

25'

Low Density Residential
LDR Nonresidential Standard

100' / 25'

Front Yard

Rear Yard

Standard

Lot Size
Lot Width / Street Frontage

Side Yard

Minimum Setbacks

Nonresidential Bulk Standards

Side Yard adjusted for Height Increase

Rear Yard adjusted for Height Increase

20,000 s.f.

80% / 5,047 s.f.

10,000 s.f.
0.25

20'

6 stories / 75'

Low Density Residential
LDR Nonresidential Standard

10% / 422 s.f.

40% / 7,308 s.f.

Low Density Residential
LDR Nonresidential Standard

Maximum Building Size with SUP

Floor Area Ratio / FAR

Natural Resource Protection

Minimum Building Separation

Maximum Building Height

Standard

Maximum expansion of Non-conforming Use

Nonresidential Intensity Standards

Maximum Building Size without SUP

Landscaping Surface Ratio

Standard

Minimum Parking Spaces

Parking Requirements as they apply only to area of the Addition

community center 1 per 250 s.f. = 15
community center 1 per 4 people

20.54'

7.82'

138.76'

Existing Nonconforming Use
Grandfathered

18,268 s.f.

2.75' on north / 77.35' on south grandfathered

grandfathered
align with existing / 20.54' at Addition

no change on north / 44.35' at Addition

no change from existing

69.35' to Addition

no change from existing

Proposed PUD
New Standard

grandfathered

grandfathered
- 16.46' / -49%

+38.76' / +138%
-21,732 s.f. / -44%

+ 25.36' / +249%

+44.35' / +277%

requires
deviation

deviation

deviation

Deviation from LDR

deviation

0.23

20.49'

58'

Existing Nonconforming Use
Grandfathered

NA

10,818 s.f.  / 59%

Existing Nonconforming Use
Grandfathered

1 parking space

NA 84% / 5,300 s.f.

0.44

58.05' to nearest Garage

37' to ridge of Addition,
below existing Nave ridge

Proposed PUD
New Standard

8,213 s.f. / 44%

Proposed PUD
New Standard

5 parking spaces / 2 ADA

12,022 s.f. below allowed / -20%
2,022 s.f. below allowed / -20%

38' below allowed,
add 1' to side & rear setbacks

for each 1' over 30' standard LDR

+ 38.05' / +290%

905 s.f. above required / +4%

10 parking spaces below required / -66%

deviation

deviation

church capacity = 112 114 / 4 = 29 24 parking spaces below required / -84%

Deviation from LDR

Deviation from LDR

4,225 s.f. + 3,763 s.f. = 7,988 s.f.
4,225 s.f. + 3,763 s.f. = 7,988 s.f.4,225 s.f.

4,225 s.f.
3,763 s.f.

0.19 over / +76%

84% / +253  s.f. above required
89% / 3,341 s.f. more than allowed

alternative calculation

Zoning Districts Standards Comparison

70
.5

9'

6
5.

57
'

58
.0

8
'

77.35'

7.8
2'

2.75'58.25'

42.36'

6
9.35'

20.49'

20
.54'

37' adjusted LDR Rear Yard Setback

10' LDR Side Yard Setback

17' adjusted LDR Side Yard Setback

25' LDR Front Setback

new impervious surface

existing 30' LDR Rear Yard Setback

existing impervious surface

new deck at new 3rd Floor
to provide egress to grade,

allowed in Rear Yard setback

Existing
House

Existing
House

Existing
Garage

Existing
Garage

Alley

Proposed Site Zoning Standards Plan
1" = 20'-0"

30
.0

0
'

30.00'

add 1' to setback for every 1' in height

Property line

2

Page 52 of 99



A
d
a
m

 J
o
h

n
s
o
n

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re

c D
ra

w
in

gs
 re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
so

le
 p

ro
pe

rty
 o

f t
he

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
, r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

&
 u

se
 b

y 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
nl

y.

2
1
1
 F

o
u

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e
t,

 G
a
le

n
a
, 
Il
li
n

o
is

 6
1
0
3
6
-2

4
0
0

a
d
a
m

iz
s
o
3
3
3
@

g
m

a
il
.c

o
m

  
  
  
  
 8

1
5
/2

8
1
-1

5
7
7

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

ti
on

 S
ta

te
m

en
t

I c
er

ti
fy

 t
ha

t 
th

es
e 

pl
an

s 
we

re
 p

re
pa

re
d

by
 m

e 
& 

to
 t

he
 b

es
t 

of
 m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e

co
nf

or
m

 t
o 

Lo
ca

l, 
S

ta
te

, &
 N

at
io

na
l C

od
es

.
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

:  
   

   
A

da
m

 C
. J

oh
ns

on
Illi

no
is

 li
ce

ns
e 

nu
m

be
r: 

   
0

0
1-

0
14

98
6

ex
pi

ra
ti

on
 d

at
e: 

  
 

11/
30

/2
0

16

24
36

 a
da

m
iz

so
33

3@
gm

ai
l.c

om

sheet

S
it

e 
Pl

an
 F

or
 Z

on
in

g 
Re

vie
w 

fo
r N

ew
 P

la
nn

ed
 U

ni
t 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

G
ra

ce
 E

pi
sc

op
al

 C
hu

rc
h

10
7 

Pr
os

pe
ct

 S
tr

ee
t,

 G
al

en
a,

 Il
lin

oi
s 

6
10

36

3/18/16
revisions:
4/16/16

of 2

9'
-1

 1/
8

"

20'-10" 70'-7 1/8"

Property line
Property line

Proposed Section
1/8" = 1'-0"

20'-10"

4'
-4

 1/
2"

Property line

addition roof lower than existing Nave roof

Proposed South Elevation
1/8" = 1'-0"

42'-4 3/8"

9'
-1

 1/
8

"
1'-

2 
3/

4"
9'

-1
 1/

8
"

1'-
2 

3/
4"

8
'-1

 1/
8

"
2'

36
'-2

 5
/8

"

57
'-1

0
"

35' Addition

relocate existing Gothic Windows
to be covered by Addition
relocate existing Gothic Windows
to be covered by Addition

Property line

1st floor

2nd floor

3rd floor

Proposed East Elevation
1/8" = 1'-0"

42'-4 3/8"

9'
-1

 1/
8

"
1'-

2 
3/

4"
9'

-1
 1/

8
"

1'-
2 

3/
4"

8
'-1

 1/
8

"

13
'-4

 1/
2"

Addition ridge to be lower than existingAddition ridge to be lower than existing
Property line

1st floor

2nd floor

3rd floor

Proposed West Elevation
1/8" = 1'-0"

addition roof lower than existing Nave roofaddition roof lower than existing Nave roof

property line

Proposed North Elevation
1/8" = 1'-0"

Page 53 of 99



A
d
a
m

 J
o
h

n
s
o
n

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re

c D
ra

w
in

gs
 re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
so

le
 p

ro
pe

rty
 o

f t
he

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
, r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

&
 u

se
 b

y 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
nl

y.

2
1
1
 F

o
u

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e
t,

 G
a
le

n
a
, 
Il
li
n

o
is

 6
1
0
3
6
-2

4
0
0

a
d
a
m

iz
s
o
3
3
3
@

g
m

a
il
.c

o
m

  
  
  
  
 8

1
5
/2

8
1
-1

5
7
7

24
36

 a
da

m
iz

so
33

3@
gm

ai
l.c

om

sheet

of 16

1/15/16
revisions:
1/28/16
2/22/16

S
to

ne
 V

en
ee

r S
ch

em
e

A
dd

it
io

n 
& 

A
lt

er
at

io
ns

 t
o

G
ra

ce
 E

pi
sc

op
al

 C
hu

rc
h

10
7 

S
ou

th
 P

ro
sp

ec
t 

S
tr

ee
t,

 G
al

en
a,

 Il
lin

oi
s 

6
10

36

V1

Page 54 of 99



A
d
a
m

 J
o
h

n
s
o
n

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re

c D
ra

w
in

gs
 re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
so

le
 p

ro
pe

rty
 o

f t
he

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
, r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

&
 u

se
 b

y 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
nl

y.

2
1
1
 F

o
u

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e
t,

 G
a
le

n
a
, 
Il
li
n

o
is

 6
1
0
3
6
-2

4
0
0

a
d
a
m

iz
s
o
3
3
3
@

g
m

a
il
.c

o
m

  
  
  
  
 8

1
5
/2

8
1
-1

5
7
7

24
36

 a
da

m
iz

so
33

3@
gm

ai
l.c

om

sheet

of 16

1/15/16
revisions:
1/28/16
2/22/16

S
to

ne
 V

en
ee

r S
ch

em
e

A
dd

it
io

n 
& 

A
lt

er
at

io
ns

 t
o

G
ra

ce
 E

pi
sc

op
al

 C
hu

rc
h

10
7 

S
ou

th
 P

ro
sp

ec
t 

S
tr

ee
t,

 G
al

en
a,

 Il
lin

oi
s 

6
10

36

V3

Page 55 of 99



A
d
a
m

 J
o
h

n
s
o
n

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re

c D
ra

w
in

gs
 re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
so

le
 p

ro
pe

rty
 o

f t
he

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
, r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

&
 u

se
 b

y 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
nl

y.

2
1
1
 F

o
u

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e
t,

 G
a
le

n
a
, 
Il
li
n

o
is

 6
1
0
3
6
-2

4
0
0

a
d
a
m

iz
s
o
3
3
3
@

g
m

a
il
.c

o
m

  
  
  
  
 8

1
5
/2

8
1
-1

5
7
7

24
36

 a
da

m
iz

so
33

3@
gm

ai
l.c

om

sheet

of 16

1/15/16
revisions:
1/28/16
2/22/16

S
to

ne
 V

en
ee

r S
ch

em
e

A
dd

it
io

n 
& 

A
lt

er
at

io
ns

 t
o

G
ra

ce
 E

pi
sc

op
al

 C
hu

rc
h

10
7 

S
ou

th
 P

ro
sp

ec
t 

S
tr

ee
t,

 G
al

en
a,

 Il
lin

oi
s 

6
10

36

V4

Page 56 of 99



A
d
a
m

 J
o
h

n
s
o
n

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re

c D
ra

w
in

gs
 re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
so

le
 p

ro
pe

rty
 o

f t
he

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
, r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

&
 u

se
 b

y 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
nl

y.

2
1
1
 F

o
u

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e
t,

 G
a
le

n
a
, 
Il
li
n

o
is

 6
1
0
3
6
-2

4
0
0

a
d
a
m

iz
s
o
3
3
3
@

g
m

a
il
.c

o
m

  
  
  
  
 8

1
5
/2

8
1
-1

5
7
7

24
36

 a
da

m
iz

so
33

3@
gm

ai
l.c

om

sheet

of 16

1/15/16
revisions:
1/28/16
2/22/16

S
to

ne
 V

en
ee

r S
ch

em
e

A
dd

it
io

n 
& 

A
lt

er
at

io
ns

 t
o

G
ra

ce
 E

pi
sc

op
al

 C
hu

rc
h

10
7 

S
ou

th
 P

ro
sp

ec
t 

S
tr

ee
t,

 G
al

en
a,

 Il
lin

oi
s 

6
10

36

V5

Page 57 of 99



A
d
a
m

 J
o
h

n
s
o
n

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re

c D
ra

w
in

gs
 re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
so

le
 p

ro
pe

rty
 o

f t
he

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
, r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

&
 u

se
 b

y 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
nl

y.

2
1
1
 F

o
u

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e
t,

 G
a
le

n
a
, 
Il
li
n

o
is

 6
1
0
3
6
-2

4
0
0

a
d
a
m

iz
s
o
3
3
3
@

g
m

a
il
.c

o
m

  
  
  
  
 8

1
5
/2

8
1
-1

5
7
7

24
36

 a
da

m
iz

so
33

3@
gm

ai
l.c

om

sheet

of 16

1/15/16
revisions:
1/28/16
2/22/16

S
to

ne
 V

en
ee

r S
ch

em
e

A
dd

it
io

n 
& 

A
lt

er
at

io
ns

 t
o

G
ra

ce
 E

pi
sc

op
al

 C
hu

rc
h

10
7 

S
ou

th
 P

ro
sp

ec
t 

S
tr

ee
t,

 G
al

en
a,

 Il
lin

oi
s 

6
10

36

V7

Page 58 of 99



A
d
a
m

 J
o
h

n
s
o
n

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re

c D
ra

w
in

gs
 re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
so

le
 p

ro
pe

rty
 o

f t
he

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
, r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

&
 u

se
 b

y 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
nl

y.

2
1
1
 F

o
u

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e
t,

 G
a
le

n
a
, 
Il
li
n

o
is

 6
1
0
3
6
-2

4
0
0

a
d
a
m

iz
s
o
3
3
3
@

g
m

a
il
.c

o
m

  
  
  
  
 8

1
5
/2

8
1
-1

5
7
7

24
36

 a
da

m
iz

so
33

3@
gm

ai
l.c

om

sheet

of 16

1/15/16
revisions:
1/28/16
2/22/16

S
to

ne
 V

en
ee

r S
ch

em
e

A
dd

it
io

n 
& 

A
lt

er
at

io
ns

 t
o

G
ra

ce
 E

pi
sc

op
al

 C
hu

rc
h

10
7 

S
ou

th
 P

ro
sp

ec
t 

S
tr

ee
t,

 G
al

en
a,

 Il
lin

oi
s 

6
10

36

V8

Page 59 of 99



A
d
a
m

 J
o
h

n
s
o
n

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re

c D
ra

w
in

gs
 re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
so

le
 p

ro
pe

rty
 o

f t
he

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
, r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

&
 u

se
 b

y 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
nl

y.

2
1
1
 F

o
u

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e
t,

 G
a
le

n
a
, 
Il
li
n

o
is

 6
1
0
3
6
-2

4
0
0

a
d
a
m

iz
s
o
3
3
3
@

g
m

a
il
.c

o
m

  
  
  
  
 8

1
5
/2

8
1
-1

5
7
7

24
36

 a
da

m
iz

so
33

3@
gm

ai
l.c

om

sheet

of 16

1/15/16
revisions:
1/28/16
2/22/16

S
to

ne
 V

en
ee

r S
ch

em
e

A
dd

it
io

n 
& 

A
lt

er
at

io
ns

 t
o

G
ra

ce
 E

pi
sc

op
al

 C
hu

rc
h

10
7 

S
ou

th
 P

ro
sp

ec
t 

S
tr

ee
t,

 G
al

en
a,

 Il
lin

oi
s 

6
10

36

V11

Page 60 of 99



Welcome to Everest Columbarium 

We look forward to working with you on your columbarium project and will assist you from 
concept design to completion. 

 

WHY CEMETERIES AND CHURCHES CHOOSE EVEREST COLUMBARIUM 

Everest Columbarium is beautiful, low cost, and maintenance free.  These features will save your 
facility money now and in the future.  Everest sells a complete system. Every niche purchased 
includes; niche module and cap, liner urn with lid, decorative granite faceplate, and tamper-
resistant assembly hardware. There are no hidden fees or additional items required.  

When space matters, 2-4 times more Everest niches can be installed in the same amount of space 
as our competition. Everest has the highest niche density on the market. See space chart below.  

Use chart to calculate how 
many Everest niches can be 
accommodated in a given 
height and width. 

COLUMBARIUM 
HEIGHT 

     COLUMBARIUM WIDTH 
  1'3" 2'6" 3'9" 5'0" 6'3" 7'6" 8'9" 10'0" 
1'3" 4 8 12 16 20 24 28 32 
2'6" 8 16 24 32 40 48 56 64 
3'9" 12 24 36 48 60 72 84 96 
5'0" 16 32 48 64 80 96 112 128 
6'3" 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 
7'6" 24 48 72 96 120 144 168 192 
8'9" 28 56 84 112 140 168 196 224 

 

 

A single Everest niche weighs approximately 16 pounds with cremains interred, requiring a 
smaller foundation than a concrete or stainless steel columbarium. Everest Columbarium was 
designed to be installed using facility personnel or a local contractor. No heavy equipment is 

required for off-loading, assembly, or installation. 

Page 61 of 99



Our modular interlocking niche can be designed to fit into ANY space or configuration. Pre-
existing interior or exterior wall applications, free standing consoles, and memorial garden 
designs are all possibilities with the Everest Columbarium. Create your own or we have 
adaptable site plans available. See examples below. 

 

 

 

Everest niches are manufactured from an engineered resin of the highest structural integrity with 
no corrosion. Once installed, the columbarium is virtually maintenance-free. We are happy to 
provide a list of clients upon request. Many of our customers have expanded their columbarium 
because their initial project has been so successful. 

 

  

Page 62 of 99



Everest Columbarium
P.O. BOX 778   Lewisville, North Carolina 27023  Tel. 336-945-0221

0.750" Bronze Angle

0.750"x 0.750" Bronze "U" Channel

Corner bracket for Bronze Trim

Make sure Niche male connector faces
 down on bottom right Niche

1. Make sure that male connector is facing down on 
first bottom right piece.
2. Attach Niches into rows via screws- front & rear.(KEEP SCREWS LOOSE!!)
3. Stack rows and attach via screws- front & rear. (KEEP SCREWS LOOSE!!)
4. When desired configuration is completely assembled, 
attach bronze channels and angle using the S.S. 10x24x 1" screws
5. After bronze trim is attached, use corner brackets to
support each corner.
6. Tighten all niche to niche screws after bronze channel is attached. 
7. Configuration can now be installed
8. Attach face plates after installation

Bronze Trim Assembly Instructions

Bronze Trim & Installation 
(2x2 generic configuration shown)

Anchor to wall every
other niche

1. Make sure that male connector is facing down on 
first bottom right piece.
2. Attach Niches into rows via the S.S. 10x24x .750 screws- front & rear.
3. Stack rows and attach via screws- front & rear (KEEP SCREWS LOOSE)
4  When desired configuration is completely assembled, 
attach bronze trim
5.Tighten all niche to niche screws after bronze channel is attached

Niche to Niche Assembly Instructions

Niche to Niche Assembly

Everest Columbarium
P.O. BOX 778   Lewisville, North Carolina 27023  Tel. 336-945-0221

Make sure Niche male connector faces down on bottom right Niche

Page 63 of 99



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS
101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050      Facsimile: 815-777-3083      www.cityofgalena.org

MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council

FROM: Andy Lewis, City Engineer

DATE: 22 June 2016

RE: Sidewalk Replacement Program
Approval of Bids

Bids for unit costs to repair the downtown sidewalks, crosswalks and curb and gutter were sent to
three contractors, of which two responded with results summarized below and detailed in the
attached table.

REF. # CONTRACTOR BASE BID $ ALTERNATE BID $

1 Louie’s Trenching Service 87,250 35,310

2 Civil Constructors 196,305 54,010

This project involves the replacement of various areas of sidewalk, crosswalk and curb and gutter
at different locations on Main and Commerce Street. At this stage the plan is to replace
deteriorated exposed aggregate sidewalk with tinted ordinary concrete. Tint color will be decided
by viewing a number of trial panels provided by Bard Materials. The bid also includes an item for
sealing all the existing sidewalks on Main Street.

Based on previous discussions by the city council the brick paving band will be left in place and
considered for replacement at another time. Areas of settled or heaved pavers will be corrected as
part of this contract.

The summary table indicates Louie’s Trenching Service have provided the best value unit costs for
a total base bid of $87,250 which encompasses Main Street while the alternate add on bid of
$35,310 covers improvements to Commerce Street. Total combined cost is $122,560 which
exceeds the budget amount of $110,700 (item 01.41.830.01) by $11,860. If the city council wishes,
staff could adjust the contract sum to match the approved budget amount. Alternatively,
additional funds could be allocated to the project.

I recommend the city council approves the contract with Louie’s Trenching Service for downtown
sidewalk replacement.

Page 64 of 99



SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 2016

Civil Constructors Louie's Trenching Service

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST $ TOTAL $ UNIT COST $ TOTAL $

PHASE I

1

Remove and replace 5" thick sidewalk at various

locations SF 3200 25 80,000.00 13 41,600.00

2

Remove and replace 7" thick sidewalk at various

locations SF 640 26 16,640.00 14.5 9,280.00

3

Remove and replace 9" thick crosswalks, including steel

dowels SF 590 53 31,270.00 33 19,470.00

4

Remove and replace 24" curb and gutter, including steel

dowels LF 10 180 1,800.00 40 400.00

ADDITIONAL ITEMS

5

Spot repairs to sidewalk with concrete, each less than 2

SF in area SF 80 105 8,400.00 100 8,000.00

6 Detectable warnings concrete or clay tile SF 40 136 5,440.00 50 2,000.00

7

Place cold patch to areas of deteriorated sidewalk (city

will supply cold patch in 50 lb. bags) Bag 5 887 4,435.00 200 1,000.00

8

Apply single coat of high solids sealer to existing

sidewalk SY 5000 8.8 44,000.00 0.5 2,500.00

9

Wood ramp/walkways with handrail to allow access to

property minimum of four walkways Sum 1 4320 4,320.00 3000 3,000.00

TOTAL BASE BID 196,305.00 87,250.00

ALTERNATE ITEMS

PHASE II

A1

Remove and replace 5" thick sidewalk at various

locations SF 1350 22 29,700.00 13 17,550.00

A2

Remove and replace 7" thick sidewalk at various

locations SF 300 21 6,300.00 14.5 4,350.00

A3

Remove and replace 9" thick crosswalks, including steel

dowels SF 370 43 15,910.00 33 12,210.00

A4 Re set areas of brick pavers at selected locations SF 100 21 2,100.00 12 1,200.00

TOTAL ALTERNATES 54,010.00 35,310.00

Page 65 of 99



Ordinance No. O-16- 

 
ORDINANCE REGULATING WAGES OF 

LABORERS, MECHANICS AND OTHER WORKERS 
EMPLOYED IN PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS FOR 

THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
 

WHEREAS, the State of Illinois has enacted, "An Act regulating wages of 
laborers, mechanics and other workers employed in any public works by the State, 
county, city or any public body or any political subdivision or by anyone under contract 
for public works," approved June 26, 1941, codified as amended, 280 ILCS 130/1 et seq. 
(1993), formerly Ill. Rev. State., Ch. 48, par. 39s-1 et seq.; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the aforesaid Act requires that the City of Galena of Jo Daviess 

County investigate and ascertain the prevailing rate of wages as defined in said Act for 
laborers, mechanics and other workers in the locality of Jo Daviess County employed in 
performing construction of public works for said City of Galena. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Galena: 
 
SECTION 1: To the extent and as required by, "An Act regulating wages of 

laborers, mechanics and other workers employed in any public works by the State, county, 
city or any public body or any political subdivision or by anyone under contract for public 
works," approved June 26, 1941, as amended, the general prevailing rate of wages in this 
locality for laborers, mechanics and other workers engaged in construction of public 
works coming under the jurisdiction of the City of Galena is hereby ascertained to be the 
same as the prevailing rate of wages for construction work in the Jo Daviess County area 
as determined by the Department of Labor of the State of Illinois as of July 1, 2015, a 
copy of that determination being attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. As 
required by said Act, any and all revisions of the prevailing rate of wages by the 
Department of Labor of the State of Illinois shall supersede the Department's June 
determination and apply to any and all public works construction undertaken by the City 
of Galena. The definition of any terms appearing in this Ordinance which are also used in 
aforesaid Act shall be the same as in said Act. 

 
SECTION 2: Nothing herein contained shall be construed to apply said general 

prevailing rate of wages as herein ascertained to any work or employment except public 
works construction of the City of Galena to the extent required by the aforesaid Act. 

 
SECTION 3: The City of Galena shall publicly post or keep available for 

inspection by any interested party in the main office of the City of Galena this 
determination or any revisions of such prevailing rate of wage. A copy of this 
determination or of the current revised determination of prevailing rate of wages then in 
effect shall be attached to all contract specifications. 

Page 66 of 99



SECTION 4: The City of Galena shall mail a copy of this determination to any 
employer and to any association of employers and to any person or association of 
employees who have filed their names and addresses requesting copies of any 
determination stating the particular rates and particular class of workers whose wages will 
be affected by such rates. 
 

SECTION 5: The City of Galena shall promptly file a certified copy of this 
Ordinance with both the Secretary of State, Index Division, and the Department of Labor 
of the State of Illinois. 
 

SECTION 6: The City of Galena shall cause to be published in a newspaper of 
general circulation within the area a copy of this ordinance and such publication shall 
constitute notice that the determination is effective and that this is the determination of 
this public body. 
 

Passed this 23rd day of June 2016 by the Galena City Council. 
 
AYES:    
 
NAYS:   None 
 
ABSENT:   None 
 
 

      
Terry Renner, Mayor

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
      
      Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Page 67 of 99



Page 68 of 99



Page 69 of 99



Page 70 of 99



Page 71 of 99



Page 72 of 99



Page 73 of 99



Page 74 of 99



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    January 20, 2016 

RE:    Street Performers Ordinance  
 
At the January 11 council meeting, you deferred action on proposed changes to the Street 
Performers Ordinance.  You requested a couple of changes to the proposed ordinance.  The 
attached ordinance includes the new changes for your review and discussion.   
 
Two versions of the revised draft ordinance are included.  One version has all of the changes 
highlighted, the other does not.  I am also attaching an updated matrix that breaks down the 
ordinance and the changes into subject areas.    
 
The revised ordinance includes the following changes from the January 11 draft: 

 

 Prohibits the use of tents or canopies.  It could be interpreted that the use of an umbrella for 
shade would be permitted.  If you intend to allow the use of an umbrella, you might want to 
include it in the ordinance and perhaps state a maximum size.  

  

 Clarifies that signs shall not be located in the street or in a location to obstruct or block the 
passage of pedestrians.   

 
I would be happy to make any additional modifications to the draft ordinance as directed. 

 

Page 75 of 99



STREET PERFORMER ORDINANCE: CURRENT ORDINANCE AND POSSIBLE REVISIONS 
January 1225, 2016 

 

Issue  Current Ordinance  Possible Additions to the Ordinance 
 
INTENT 

   

1. What is the intent of the Street Performer 
Ordinance? 

The City of Galena finds that street performers 
provide a public amenity that enhances the 
character of the community and seeks to encourage 
such performances in a manner consistent with the 
overall public interest. The City of Galena also 
recognizes that street performers seek to and do 
draw crowds to their performances. This can create 
safety problems by impacting the ability of 
pedestrians to move safely on sidewalks and 
through crosswalks and impeding the response time 
of safety personnel. It can also impact access to and 
egress from businesses. This section imposes 
reasonable time, place, and manner restrictions on 
street performers to the extent necessary to ensure 
the safety of performers, their audience, and the 
general public and to prevent unreasonable 
interference with the enjoyment of peace and quiet 
by residents in their homes or the ability of 
businesses to operate and conduct their business. 

  

 
DEFINITIONS 

   

2. What is a street performer?  A person engaging in a performance that includes, 
but is not limited to, the following activities: playing 
musical instruments, singing, dancing, acting, 
pantomiming, puppeteering, juggling, reciting, or 
creating visual art in its entirety as a performance. 

  

 
LICENSE REQUIRED 

   

3. Is a City license required?  Yes.  An application for a street performer license 
shall be made to the City Clerk. 

  

4. Where do I obtain a Street Performer 
License? 

The City Clerk issues the Street Performer License at 
City Hall. 

  

Page 76 of 99



Issue  Current Ordinance  Possible Additions to the Ordinance 
5. How long is my license valid?  From the date of issuance through April 30.    

6. Do I need to display my license when I 
perform? 

Yes. The license holder shall post the license in a 
conspicuous location at the location of the 
performance. 

  

7. Is there a fee to perform?  Yes.  The fee for a street performer license shall be 
$25 per year.  Said fee shall be paid at time of 
application. 

  

8. May I transfer my license to another 
performer or can a group perform under 
one license?   

No. The street performer license is non‐
transferable.  Each performer requires a separate 
license.   

 

 
RULES AND REGULATIONS 

   

9. Where can I perform?  There are no location restrictions provided you do 
not block or restrict an open public street or 
sidewalk at any time.     

No performance shall prevent the public from utilizing 
any public benches, waste receptacles, informational 
signs or other amenities during the performance.  No 
performance shall restrict the width of any sidewalk to 
less than five feet or otherwise inhibit the free movement 
of pedestrians on the sidewalk.  No performer shall 
perform on any street or in any public parking space. 

10. Is there a minimum distance that I must 
perform from another street performer? 

No guidance in the current ordinance.    To prevent congestion on sidewalks, no performer shall 
perform less than 20 feet from another performer or 
group of performers on Main Street, Warren Street, 
Green Street, Washington Street, Hill Street, Perry Street 
or Diagonal Street right‐of‐ways. 

11. May I perform on the sidewalk?  Yes, but it shall be unlawful to block or restrict an 
open public street or sidewalk at any time. 

No performer shall perform within 10 feet of the 
doorway or an open window of any business or 
residence.  If a sufficient crowd gathers to observe a 
performer such that the passage of the public through a 
public area is blocked or obstructed, a police officer or 
fire official may disperse that portion of the crowd that is 
blocking or obstructing the passage of the public. If a 
performer cannot conduct a performance in a location 
without blocking or obstructing the passage of the public, 
a police officer or fire official may cause the performer to 
leave the location, but shall not prevent the performer 
from occupying another location in compliance with this 
Chapter. 

   

Page 77 of 99



Issue  Current Ordinance  Possible Additions to the Ordinance 
12. When can I perform?  Performing is limited to 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

each day of the week. 
 

13. For what duration may I perform?  There is no limit on the duration of performing.   

14. Can I reserve a performance space?   No guidance in the current ordinance.    Performance space is allocated on a first‐come, first‐serve 
basis. Performance space shall not be reserved and no 
performer shall leave his or her instruments, props, 
equipment, or other items unattended.  Performers shall 
not occupy performance space before 10:00 a.m. or after 
8:00 p.m.  

15. Is there a limit on the number of performers 
that I can perform at the same time? 

No limit in the current ordinance.  Not more than five performers may perform as a 
coordinated unit or group in one location.   

16. Is there a limit on the amount of items that I 
may assemble for my performance? 

No limit in the current ordinance.   

17. May I solicit for donations or contributions?  Performers may collect donations during or 
immediately following a performance, however no 
fee shall be charged for any performance. 

Yes, however, no performer shall require someone to pay 
a fee or set or negotiate a fee for a performance.  
Voluntary donations may be accepted by performers. 
Selling of any items or services is prohibited.  

18. May I display signs to at my performance 
location? 

No guidance in the current ordinance.  However, 
the Sign Ordinance does not specifically allow signs 
for street performers. 

Each performer may display a sign at the performance 
location not to exceed 12 inches by 18 inches.  Signs shall 
not be located in the street or in a location to obstruct or 
block the passage of the public.  A sign may display not 
more than the name of the performer and the type of 
performance.  Any street performer sign approved by the 
City prior to January 1, 2016 shall be considered 
grandfathered, but shall not be changed or structurally 
altered to prolong the life of the sign.  Signs in the 
National Register Historic District shall be constructed 
and painted in a workmanlike manner, utilize historic 
colors and earth tones, and shall be compatible with their 
surroundings in the Historic District.  

19. May I amplify my music? 
 

No.  No performer shall utilize any speaker, 
microphone or mechanical amplification device. 

  

20. Is there a limit on the volume of my music?  Yes.  No performer shall generate any sound by any 
means so that the sound is louder than 70 decibels 
(70dB) on the Capital A Scale of an ANSI approved 
sound level meter measured at a distance of 50 feet 
or more, either horizontally or vertically from the 
point of generation. 

  

Page 78 of 99



 

Issue  Current Ordinance  Possible Additions to the Ordinance 
21. May I juggle knives, flaming torches, spray 

paint or engaging in other potentially 
dangerous performing? 

No.  No performer shall use any knife, sword, torch, 
flame, axe, saw, or other object that could cause 
serious bodily injury to any person. 

No performer shall use any knife, sword, torch, flame, 
aerosol, spray paint, axe, saw, or other object, 
flammable liquid, gas, toxin, or carcinogen that could be 
flammable, explode or otherwise cause serious bodily 
injury to any person.  

22. May I use live animals in my performance?  No prohibition in current ordinance.  No.  The use of animals is not permitted. 

23. May I set up a table, stage, or use props 
like ladders? 

No performer shall construct, erect, or maintain any 
stage, platform, or similar structure for use during 
any performance.  The current ordinance does not 
clearly state whether tables and chairs are 
permitted.    

No performer shall construct, erect, or maintain any 
stage, platform, tent, canopy or similar structure for use 
during any performance.  A table, not to exceed 30 
inches by 30 inches in area, may be used by each 
performer.  A performer may sit on a stool or chair while 
performing and make available a stool or chair for the 
public.  

24. May I use chalk on the sidewalk as part of 
my performance.   

No prohibition in the ordinance.   No.  The use of chalk on the sidewalk is prohibited. 

25. May I sell goods like cd’s, books, or t‐shirts 
while I perform? 

No guidance in the current ordinance.    No.  A performer shall not make available for a price or 
donation any items.    

26. May I use electricity or a generator?  No guidance in the current ordinance.    No.  No performer shall plug any electrical device into 
any outlet or use a generator. 

27. Are there any other rules and regulations.  No other guidance in the current ordinance.    No street performer shall engage in the application of 
tattoos or body piercing.  No street performer shall 
include obscenity in a performance.  No street performer 
shall engage in harassment or coercion of a passersby or 
other performer. 

 
EXEMPTIONS 

   

28. Are there circumstances where I do not 
need a license to perform in public? 

If you are performing as part of a licensed Street 
Dance you do not need a Street Performer license. 

Yes. If you are performing as part of a licensed Street 
Dance, Fair, Festival, Carnival, or Circus you do not need 
a Street Performer License. 

 
CONSTITUTIONALITY 

   

29. Does the ordinance contain a 
constitutionality clause?   

No.  Yes.  If any provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, 
section or part of this chapter shall, for any reason, be 
adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
unconstitutional or invalid, said judgment shall not 
affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this chapter. 
It is hereby declared to be the legislative intent of the 

Page 79 of 99



council that this chapter would have been adopted had 
such unconstitutional or invalid provision, clause, 
sentence, paragraph, section or part thereof not been 
included. 

 
VIOLATION—PENALTY 

   

30. What if I violate the rules of the Street 
Performers Ordinance?  

    (A)   Any person who violates any of the 
provisions of § 110.39 or who knowingly furnishes 
false information on the license application shall be 
subject to a fine of not more than $750. Each day 
any violation shall continue shall constitute a 
separate offense. 
   (B)   Violations of any other provision of this 
chapter, or Chapters 112 and 114 , shall be 
punishable by a fine of not more than $750. Each 
day any violation shall continue shall constitute a 
separate offense. If no license is required, or if 
there exists no current licensing fee for such event 
under which said violation occurred, said violation 
shall be subject to the violation penalties found in 
§ 10.99 . 
 

Also, see suspension of license provision below. 

31. Is there a process for filing a complaint 
against a street performer? 

No guidance in the current ordinance.   Complaints regarding any street performer shall be 
received by the police department and shall include the 
complainant, date, time, place, and details causing the 
complaint.  All complaints shall be forwarded to the 
mayor.   

   

Page 80 of 99



Issue  Current Ordinance  Possible Additions to the Ordinance 
32. Can my Street Performers License be 

suspended or revoked? 
No guidance in the current ordinance.   The mayor may suspend a license for not more than 60 

days if:  
(A) A performer violates any of the provisions of this 

Chapter. 
(B) A street performer has not complied with a 

request to follow written guidelines from either 
the mayor or the police department. 

(C) The City has received at least three documented 
verbal or written complaints regarding 
performances stating the complainant, date, 
time, place and details causing the complaint.  

 
The mayor may request that the city council revoke 
a license that has been suspended.  The revocation 
of a license shall be for a period not to exceed one 
year.   

33. Is there an appeal process if action is 
taken against me based on a violation of 
the ordinance or a complaint? 

  A performer whose license has been suspended or 
revoked may request and is entitled to a public hearing 
concerning the suspension or revocation. Written notice 
will be given to the individual at least 7 days prior to the 
public hearing. The written notice will set forth the facts 
constituting the basis for the suspension or revocation. A 
hearing panel comprised of the mayor and city council 
will hear oral testimony, receive written evidence and 
provide a written decision to performer.  A majority vote 
of the full city council shall be required to uphold or 
modify the original action.    

 

Page 81 of 99



1 
 

Ordinance #‐1516‐_____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 110.39 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  

OF THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 

   

  WHEREAS, the City Council seeks to continue to encourage creative expression in public 

spaces while at the same time protecting the public health, safety and general welfare, and 

              WHEREAS, Chapter 110.39 of the Galena Code of Ordinances, Street Performers, 

regulates the performing of music or otherwise entertaining in public while collecting 

donations, and 

              WHEREAS, the City Council desires to update the Street Performers ordinance with 
attention to the constitutional protections of free speech and expression and in a manner 
consistent with the overall public interest.  
 
   THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois, as follows: 

 
SECTION I:  The definition of “Street Performers” in Chapter 110.02, entitled 

“DEFINITIONS”, of the Galena Code of Ordinances shall continue in full force and effect as 

follows: 

STREET PERFORMER.  A person engaging in a performance that includes, but is 

not limited to, the following activities: playing musical instruments, singing, 

dancing, acting, pantomiming, puppeteering, juggling, reciting, or creating visual 

art in its entirety as a performance. 

   
             SECTION II:  Chapter 110.39, entitled “STREET PERFORMERS”, of the Galena Code of 
Ordinances shall be replaced in whole with the following: 
 

§ 110.39  STREET PERFORMERS. 

   (A)   Intent. The City of Galena finds that street performers provide a public amenity that 

enhances the character of the community and seeks to encourage such performances in a 

manner consistent with the overall public interest. The City of Galena also recognizes that 

street performers seek to and do draw crowds to their performances. This can create safety 

problems by impacting the ability of pedestrians to move safely on sidewalks and through 

crosswalks and impeding the response time of safety personnel. It can also impact access to 

and egress from businesses. This section imposes reasonable time, place, and manner 

Page 82 of 99



2 
 

restrictions on street performers to the extent necessary to ensure the safety of performers, 

their audience, and the general public and to prevent unreasonable interference with the 

enjoyment of peace and quiet by residents in their homes or the ability of businesses to 

operate and conduct their business. 

   (B)   License required.  It shall be unlawful to perform in public without first obtaining a street 

performer license. 

      (1)   An application for a street performer license shall be made to the City Clerk. 

      (2)   The fee for a street performer license shall be $25 per year. Said fee shall be paid at 

time of application. 

      (3)   The street performer license shall be valid from the date of issuance through April 30. 

      (4)   The license holder shall post the license in a conspicuous location at the location of the 

performance. 

      (5)   The street performer license is non‐transferable. 

   (C)   Rules and regulations. 

       (1)   Performing is limited to 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

     (12)   It shall be unlawful to block or restrict an open public street or sidewalk at any time.No 

performance shall prevent the public from utilizing any public benches, waste receptacles, 

informational signs or other amenities during the performance.  No performance shall restrict 

the width of any sidewalk to less than five feet or otherwise inhibit the free movement of 

pedestrians on the sidewalk.  No performer shall perform on any street or in any public parking 

space. 

     (3)   To prevent congestion on sidewalks, no performer shall perform less than 20 feet from 

another performer or group of performers on the Main Street, Warren Street, Green Street, 

Washington Street, Hill Street, Perry Street or Diagonal Street right‐of‐ways. 

     (4)    No performer shall perform within 10 feet of the doorway or an open window of any 

business or residence.  If a sufficient crowd gathers to observe a performer such that the 

passage of the public through a public area is blocked or obstructed, a police officer or fire 

official may disperse that portion of the crowd that is blocking or obstructing the passage of the 

public. If a performer cannot conduct a performance in a location without blocking or 

obstructing the passage of the public, a police officer or fire official may cause the performer to 

leave the location, but shall not prevent the performer from occupying another location in 

compliance with this Chapter. 

     (5)   Performance space is allocated on a first‐come, first‐serve basis.  Performance space 

shall not be reserved and no performer shall leave his or her instruments, props, equipment, or 

Page 83 of 99



3 
 

other items unattended, or otherwise occupy a performance space, before 10:00 a.m. or after 

8:00 p.m. 

      (2)   Performing is limited to 10:00 am. to 8:00 p.m. 

     (6)    Not more than five performers may perform as a coordinated unit or group in one 

location.   

     (7)   No performer shall construct, erect, or maintain any stage, platform, tent, canopy or 

similar structure for use during any performance.  A table, not to exceed 30 inches by 30 inches 

in area, may be used by each performer.  A performer may sit on a stool or chair while 

performing and make available a stool or chair for the public. 

     (8)    No performer shall require someone to pay a fee or set or negotiate a fee for a 

performance.  Voluntary donations may be accepted by performers.  Selling of any items or 

services is prohibited.   

     (9)  Each performer may display a sign at the performance location not to exceed 12 inches 

by 18 inches.  Signs shall not be located in the street or in a location to obstruct or block the 

passage of the public. A sign may display not more than the name of the performer and the 

type of performance.  Any street performer sign approved by the City prior to January 1, 2016 

shall be considered grandfathered, but shall not be changed or structurally altered to prolong 

the life of the sign.  Signs in the National Register Historic District shall be constructed and 

painted in a workmanlike manner, utilize historic colors and earth tones, and shall be 

compatible with their surroundings in the Historic District. 

      (310)   No performer shall utilize any speaker, microphone or mechanical amplification 

device. 

      (411)   No performer shall generate any sound by any means so that the sound is louder 

than 70 decibels (70dB) on the Capital A Scale of an ANSI approved sound level meter measured 

at a distance of 50 feet or more, either horizontally or vertically from the point of generation. 

      (512)   No performer shall use any knife, sword, torch, flame, axe, saw, or other object that 

could cause serious bodily injury to any person. No performer shall use any knife, sword, torch, 

flame, aerosol, spray paint, axe, saw, or other object, liquid, gas, toxin or carcinogen that could 

be flammable, explode or otherwise cause serious bodily injury to any person. 

    (13)   The use of animals is not permitted. 

    (14)   The use of chalk on the sidewalk is prohibited. 

    (15)   No performer shall plug any electrical device into any outlet, use a generator, or use 

lighting. 

Page 84 of 99



4 
 

    (16)   No street performer shall engage in the application of tattoos or body piercing.  No 

street performer shall include obscenity in a performance.  No street performer shall engage in 

harassment or coercion of a passersby or other performer. 

      (6)   No performer shall construct, erect, or maintain any stage, platform, or similar structure 

for use during any performance. 

      (7)   Performers may collect donations during or immediately following a performance, 

however no fee shall be charged for any performance. 

   (D)   Exemptions. Performances or performers sponsored by or within a licensed street dance, 

fair, festival, carnival, circus, or similar event, and for the purpose of entertainment, when no 

solicitation for money is made shall be exempt from the license requirements of this section. 

   (E)   Violation—Penalty   

     (1)    Complaints regarding any street performer shall be received by the police department 

and shall include the complainant, date, time, place, and details of the complaint.  All 

complaints shall be forwarded to the mayor.   

     (2)   The mayor may suspend a license for not more than 60 days if:  

a) A performer violates any of the provisions of this Chapter. 

b) A performer has not complied with a request to follow verbal or written guidelines from 

either the mayor or the police department. 

c) The City has received at least three documented verbal or written complaints regarding 

violations of the provisions of this Chapter and stating the complainant, date, time, 

place and details of the complaint.  

     (3)   The mayor may request that the city council revoke a license that has been suspended.  

The revocation of a license shall be for a period not to exceed one year.   

     (4)   A performer whose license has been suspended or revoked may request and is entitled 

to a public hearing concerning the suspension or revocation. Written notice of the date, place 

and time of the hearing will be given to the individual at least seven days prior to the hearing. 

The written notice will set forth the facts constituting the basis for the suspension or 

revocation. A hearing panel comprised of the mayor and city council will hear oral testimony, 

receive written evidence and provide a written decision to the performer.  A majority vote of 

the full city council shall be required to uphold or modify the original action.    

     (F)   Severability 

     If any provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part of this chapter shall, for any 

reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, said 

judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this chapter. It is hereby 

Page 85 of 99



5 
 

declared to be the legislative intent of the council that this chapter would have been adopted 

had such unconstitutional or invalid provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part 

thereof not been included. 

             SECTION III:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with the provisions of this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 

                     SECTION IV:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval in the manner provided by law. 

             SECTION V:  Passed on this ____ day of ____________, A.D., 20152016, in open 

session. 

 

 

                                                     ___________________________________ 

            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

  

Page 86 of 99



1 
 

Ordinance #‐16‐_____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 110.39 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  

OF THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 

   

  WHEREAS, the City Council seeks to continue to encourage creative expression in public 

spaces while at the same time protecting the public health, safety and general welfare, and 

              WHEREAS, Chapter 110.39 of the Galena Code of Ordinances, Street Performers, 

regulates the performing of music or otherwise entertaining in public while collecting 

donations, and 

              WHEREAS, the City Council desires to update the Street Performers ordinance with 
attention to the constitutional protections of free speech and expression and in a manner 
consistent with the overall public interest.  
 
   THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois, as follows: 

 
SECTION I:  The definition of “Street Performers” in Chapter 110.02, entitled 

“DEFINITIONS”, of the Galena Code of Ordinances shall continue in full force and effect as 

follows: 

STREET PERFORMER.  A person engaging in a performance that includes, but is 

not limited to, the following activities: playing musical instruments, singing, 

dancing, acting, pantomiming, puppeteering, juggling, reciting, or creating visual 

art in its entirety as a performance. 

   
             SECTION II:  Chapter 110.39, entitled “STREET PERFORMERS”, of the Galena Code of 
Ordinances shall be replaced in whole with the following: 
 

§ 110.39  STREET PERFORMERS. 

   (A)   Intent. The City of Galena finds that street performers provide a public amenity that 

enhances the character of the community and seeks to encourage such performances in a 

manner consistent with the overall public interest. The City of Galena also recognizes that 

street performers seek to and do draw crowds to their performances. This can create safety 

problems by impacting the ability of pedestrians to move safely on sidewalks and through 

crosswalks and impeding the response time of safety personnel. It can also impact access to 

and egress from businesses. This section imposes reasonable time, place, and manner 

Page 87 of 99



2 
 

restrictions on street performers to the extent necessary to ensure the safety of performers, 

their audience, and the general public and to prevent unreasonable interference with the 

enjoyment of peace and quiet by residents in their homes or the ability of businesses to 

operate and conduct their business. 

   (B)   License required.  It shall be unlawful to perform in public without first obtaining a street 

performer license. 

      (1)   An application for a street performer license shall be made to the City Clerk. 

      (2)   The fee for a street performer license shall be $25 per year. Said fee shall be paid at 

time of application. 

      (3)   The street performer license shall be valid from the date of issuance through April 30. 

      (4)   The license holder shall post the license in a conspicuous location at the location of the 

performance. 

      (5)   The street performer license is non‐transferable. 

   (C)   Rules and regulations. 

     (1)   Performing is limited to 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

     (2)   No performance shall prevent the public from utilizing any public benches, waste 

receptacles, informational signs or other amenities during the performance.  No performance 

shall restrict the width of any sidewalk to less than five feet or otherwise inhibit the free 

movement of pedestrians on the sidewalk.  No performer shall perform on any street or in any 

public parking space. 

     (3)   To prevent congestion on sidewalks, no performer shall perform less than 20 feet from 

another performer or group of performers on the Main Street, Warren Street, Green Street, 

Washington Street, Hill Street, Perry Street or Diagonal Street right‐of‐ways. 

     (4)    No performer shall perform within 10 feet of the doorway or an open window of any 

business or residence.  If a sufficient crowd gathers to observe a performer such that the 

passage of the public through a public area is blocked or obstructed, a police officer or fire 

official may disperse that portion of the crowd that is blocking or obstructing the passage of the 

public. If a performer cannot conduct a performance in a location without blocking or 

obstructing the passage of the public, a police officer or fire official may cause the performer to 

leave the location, but shall not prevent the performer from occupying another location in 

compliance with this Chapter. 

     (5)   Performance space is allocated on a first‐come, first‐serve basis.  Performance space 

shall not be reserved and no performer shall leave his or her instruments, props, equipment, or 

Page 88 of 99



3 
 

other items unattended, or otherwise occupy a performance space, before 10:00 a.m. or after 

8:00 p.m. 

     (6)    Not more than five performers may perform as a coordinated unit or group in one 

location.   

     (7)   No performer shall construct, erect, or maintain any stage, platform, tent, canopy or 

similar structure for use during any performance.  A table, not to exceed 30 inches by 30 inches 

in area, may be used by each performer.  A performer may sit on a stool or chair while 

performing and make available a stool or chair for the public. 

     (8)    No performer shall require someone to pay a fee or set or negotiate a fee for a 

performance.  Voluntary donations may be accepted by performers.  Selling of any items or 

services is prohibited.   

     (9)  Each performer may display a sign at the performance location not to exceed 12 inches 

by 18 inches.  Signs shall not be located in the street or in a location to obstruct or block the 

passage of the public. A sign may display not more than the name of the performer and the 

type of performance.  Any street performer sign approved by the City prior to January 1, 2016 

shall be considered grandfathered, but shall not be changed or structurally altered to prolong 

the life of the sign.  Signs in the National Register Historic District shall be constructed and 

painted in a workmanlike manner, utilize historic colors and earth tones, and shall be 

compatible with their surroundings in the Historic District. 

    (10)   No performer shall utilize any speaker, microphone or mechanical amplification device. 

    (11)   No performer shall generate any sound by any means so that the sound is louder than 

70 decibels (70dB) on the Capital A Scale of an ANSI approved sound level meter measured at a 

distance of 50 feet or more, either horizontally or vertically from the point of generation. 

    (12)    No performer shall use any knife, sword, torch, flame, aerosol, spray paint, axe, saw, or 

other object, liquid, gas, toxin or carcinogen that could be flammable, explode or otherwise 

cause serious bodily injury to any person. 

    (13)   The use of animals is not permitted. 

    (14)   The use of chalk on the sidewalk is prohibited. 

    (15)   No performer shall plug any electrical device into any outlet, use a generator, or use 

lighting. 

    (16)   No street performer shall engage in the application of tattoos or body piercing.  No 

street performer shall include obscenity in a performance.  No street performer shall engage in 

harassment or coercion of a passersby or other performer. 

Page 89 of 99



4 
 

   (D)   Exemptions. Performances or performers sponsored by or within a licensed street dance, 

fair, festival, carnival, circus, or similar event, and for the purpose of entertainment, when no 

solicitation for money is made shall be exempt from the license requirements of this section. 

   (E)   Violation—Penalty   

     (1)    Complaints regarding any street performer shall be received by the police department 

and shall include the complainant, date, time, place, and details of the complaint.  All 

complaints shall be forwarded to the mayor.   

     (2)   The mayor may suspend a license for not more than 60 days if:  

a) A performer violates any of the provisions of this Chapter. 

b) A performer has not complied with a request to follow verbal or written guidelines from 

either the mayor or the police department. 

c) The City has received at least three documented verbal or written complaints regarding 

violations of the provisions of this Chapter and stating the complainant, date, time, 

place and details of the complaint.  

     (3)   The mayor may request that the city council revoke a license that has been suspended.  

The revocation of a license shall be for a period not to exceed one year.   

     (4)   A performer whose license has been suspended or revoked may request and is entitled 

to a public hearing concerning the suspension or revocation. Written notice of the date, place 

and time of the hearing will be given to the individual at least seven days prior to the hearing. 

The written notice will set forth the facts constituting the basis for the suspension or 

revocation. A hearing panel comprised of the mayor and city council will hear oral testimony, 

receive written evidence and provide a written decision to the performer.  A majority vote of 

the full city council shall be required to uphold or modify the original action.    

     (F)   Severability 

     If any provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part of this chapter shall, for any 

reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, said 

judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this chapter. It is hereby 

declared to be the legislative intent of the council that this chapter would have been adopted 

had such unconstitutional or invalid provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part 

thereof not been included. 

             SECTION III:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with the provisions of this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 

             SECTION IV:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval in the manner provided by law. 

Page 90 of 99



5 
 

             SECTION V:  Passed on this ____ day of ____________, A.D., 2016, in open session. 

 

 

                                                     ___________________________________ 

            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

  

Page 91 of 99



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 6/14/2016 - 6/30/2016 Jun 23, 2016  01:55PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

AMERICAN RED CROSS (119785)
10457684 1 Invoice RECERTIFICATION 06/08/2016 162.00 59.55.563.00

Total AMERICAN RED CROSS (119785): 162.00

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
061516 1 Invoice POOL/PHONE 06/15/2016 27.60 59.55.552.00
061516 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/PHONE 06/15/2016 42.75 01.41.552.00
061516 3 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/PHO 06/15/2016 102.54 22.22.552.00
061516 4 Invoice EMS/PHONE 06/15/2016 27.39 12.10.552.00
061516 5 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 06/15/2016 1,121.70 01.21.552.00
061516 6 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/PHO 06/15/2016 31.78 22.22.552.00
061516 7 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/PHON 06/15/2016 219.72 01.13.552.00
061516 8 Invoice FLOOD CONTROL/PHON 06/15/2016 27.39 20.25.515.00
061516 9 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/PHON 06/15/2016 108.11 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 1,708.98

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
061516 1 Invoice POOL/LONG DISTANCE 06/15/2016 3.30 59.55.552.00
061516 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/LONG DI 06/15/2016 .07 01.41.552.00
061516 3 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/LON 06/15/2016 .63 22.22.552.00
061516 4 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 06/15/2016 24.51 01.21.552.00
061516 5 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  06/15/2016 68.55 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 97.06

BEYER, JOSEPH (119464)
646955 1 Invoice DEPOT INTERIOR PAINTI 06/09/2016 1,000.00 01.13.511.03

Total BEYER, JOSEPH (119464): 1,000.00

BLACKHAWK HILLS REGIONAL COUNCIL (120259)
061616 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 06/16/2016 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total BLACKHAWK HILLS REGIONAL COUNCIL (120259): 200.00

CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840)
061516 1 Invoice MISC. CITY HALL 06/15/2016 44.63 01.13.511.01
061516 2 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 06/15/2016 132.95 01.13.651.02
061516 3 Invoice CREATIVE CLOUD 06/15/2016 21.24 01.16.563.00
061516 4 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 06/15/2016 16.50 01.45.651.01
061516 5 Invoice HANGING CLAMPS 06/15/2016 272.00 01.45.830.00
061516 6 Invoice WEED SPRAY 06/15/2016 340.06 17.52.652.00
061516 7 Invoice SCOREBOARD LIGHTS 06/15/2016 480.76 17.52.652.00
061516 8 Invoice EXCHANGE ON LINE 06/15/2016 119.00 51.42.929.00
061516 9 Invoice SOFTWARE 06/15/2016 459.00 52.43.512.01
061516 10 Invoice UMBRELLAS 06/15/2016 779.86 59.55.511.02
061516 11 Invoice RESCUE TUBES 06/15/2016 221.70 59.55.512.00
061516 12 Invoice STAFF UNIFORMS 06/15/2016 744.77 59.55.691.04

Total CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840): 3,632.47

Page 92 of 99



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 6/14/2016 - 6/30/2016 Jun 23, 2016  01:55PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

CNA SURETY DIRECT BILL (886)
061516 1 Invoice NOTARY PUBLIC BOND 06/15/2016 30.00 01.16.651.00

Total CNA SURETY DIRECT BILL (886): 30.00

CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY (224)
S502114124. 1 Invoice ST. LIGHTS 06/06/2016 36.83 01.41.514.11

Total CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY (224): 36.83

DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867)
891710 1 Invoice TRAFFIC SIGNS 06/08/2016 77.91 01.41.652.04

Total DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867): 77.91

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
061516 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 06/15/2016 225.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 225.00

DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631)
113740 1 Invoice FIRE EXTRINGUISHER M 06/03/2016 161.90 58.54.511.00

Total DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631): 161.90

EAGLE POINT SOLAR (119784)
062016 1 Invoice PV SOLAR 06/20/2016 80,425.00 01.41.863.15

Total EAGLE POINT SOLAR (119784): 80,425.00

FARNER BOCKEN COMPANY (792)
43907107 1 Invoice CONCESSION SUPPLIES 06/16/2016 190.28 59.55.652.05

4907106 1 Invoice CONCESSION SUPPLIES 06/16/2016 1,327.48 59.55.652.05

Total FARNER BOCKEN COMPANY (792): 1,517.76

FLESCH, MELANIE (120260)
060616 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 06/06/2016 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total FLESCH, MELANIE (120260): 200.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00049718 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE 06/10/2016 33.25 52.43.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 33.25

GALENA PUBLIC LIBRARY (93)
061516 1 Invoice LIBRARY REPLACEMENT  06/15/2016 2,545.56 16.14.913.00

Total GALENA PUBLIC LIBRARY (93): 2,545.56

GALENA/JODAVIESS COUNTY CVB (119280)
050216 1 Invoice TOURISM EVENT 05/02/2016 25.00 01.11.563.00

Page 93 of 99



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 6/14/2016 - 6/30/2016 Jun 23, 2016  01:55PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total GALENA/JODAVIESS COUNTY CVB (119280): 25.00

GALL'S, INC. (712)
005474841 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/LORI 05/31/2016 77.56 01.21.471.15

Total GALL'S, INC. (712): 77.56

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
65784 1 Invoice WEBSITE HOSTING FEE 06/01/2016 102.10 01.13.512.05
75167 1 Invoice WEBSITE HOSTING FEE 05/01/2016 90.35 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 192.45

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
061516 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 06/15/2016 240.00 01.13.511.07
061516 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  06/15/2016 225.00 01.13.511.08
061516 3 Invoice PARKS RESTROOMS 06/15/2016 675.00 17.52.422.00

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 1,140.00

HATFIELD, KIMBERLY (120257)
061616 1 Invoice MEALS/TRAINING 06/16/2016 35.35 01.21.562.00

Total HATFIELD, KIMBERLY (120257): 35.35

HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931)
061516 1 Invoice HSA/FAMILY/EMPLOYEE  06/15/2016 4,361.00 01.218.0
061516 2 Invoice PPO/BLUE CROSS BLUE  06/15/2016 396.00 01.218.0
061516 3 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE 06/15/2016 32,883.34 01.13.451.00
061516 4 Invoice WESTEMEIER/INSURAN 06/15/2016 1,014.15 78.32.464.02

Total HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931): 38,654.49

IAFC MEMBERSHIP (119095)
061516 1 Invoice DUES 06/15/2016 234.00 22.22.652.00

Total IAFC MEMBERSHIP (119095): 234.00

ILLINOIS FIRE STORE (119034)
37371 1 Invoice NEW GLOVES 06/07/2016 106.97 22.22.840.00
37431 1 Invoice REPAIR BUNKER GEAR 06/08/2016 158.37 22.22.652.00
37449 1 Invoice NEW BOOTS 06/08/2016 1,834.72 22.22.840.00

Total ILLINOIS FIRE STORE (119034): 2,100.06

ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (1152)
061516 1 Invoice BACKGROUND CHECK 06/15/2016 119.00 01.21.549.00

Total ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (1152): 119.00

JDWI (235)
40973 1 Invoice SR. PUBLIC TRANSPORT 05/31/2016 833.00 01.13.542.00

Page 94 of 99



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 6/14/2016 - 6/30/2016 Jun 23, 2016  01:55PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total JDWI (235): 833.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
060116 2 Adjustmen ELECTRIC/STREET LIGH 06/01/2016 5,576.56- 15.41.572.00
060216 13 Adjustmen CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 06/02/2016 340.72- 01.13.571.01
060216 14 Adjustmen POLICE/ELECTRIC 06/02/2016 471.91- 01.21.571.01
060216 15 Adjustmen PUBLIC WORKS/ELECTRI 06/02/2016 303.05- 01.41.571.01
060216 16 Adjustmen EMS/ELECTRIC 06/02/2016 124.52- 12.10.571.01
060216 17 Adjustmen PARKS/ELECTRIC 06/02/2016 266.96- 17.52.571.01
060216 18 Adjustmen FLOOD 06/02/2016 290.80- 20.25.576.01
060216 19 Adjustmen FIRE/ELECTRIC 06/02/2016 424.09- 22.22.576.01
060216 20 Adjustmen TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 06/02/2016 494.67- 58.54.571.01
060216 21 Adjustmen POOL 06/02/2016 254.16- 59.55.571.01
060216 22 Adjustmen WELCOME SIGNS 06/02/2016 35.44- 01.41.571.01
060216 23 Adjustmen LIFT STATION 06/02/2016 126.22- 52.43.850.09
060216 24 Adjustmen DEPOT 06/02/2016 26.19- 01.13.511.03

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 8,735.29-

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
061516 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 06/16/2016 101.35 17.52.514.00
061516 2 Invoice clothing 06/16/2016 129.99 01.41.471.09

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 231.34

KIEFFER BODY SHOP INC (1267)
6146 1 Invoice BATTERIES 06/21/2016 205.22 22.22.513.00

Total KIEFFER BODY SHOP INC (1267): 205.22

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9304146254 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 06/07/2016 272.81 01.41.652.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 272.81

MAILFINANCE (119741)
H5970771 1 Invoice POSTAGE METER LEASE 06/04/2016 396.81 01.13.579.02

Total MAILFINANCE (119741): 396.81

MARTINSON, JOHN (727)
705764 1 Invoice SIGN METAL WORK DEP 06/20/2016 1,000.00 17.52.830.01

Total MARTINSON, JOHN (727): 1,000.00

METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775)
061516 1 Invoice LIFE INSURANCE 06/15/2016 302.22 01.13.451.01

Total METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775): 302.22

MIDWEST POOLS & SPAS, INC. (119982)
3001312 1 Invoice CHEMICALS 06/09/2016 58.88 59.55.656.00

Page 95 of 99



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 6/14/2016 - 6/30/2016 Jun 23, 2016  01:55PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total MIDWEST POOLS & SPAS, INC. (119982): 58.88

MOBOTREX (120256)
212057 1 Invoice TRAFFIC SIGNAL 04/22/2016 104.00 15.41.514.06

Total MOBOTREX (120256): 104.00

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)
2371142920 1 Invoice MONTHLY RATE FOR ST 06/01/2016 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

MURPHY GARDENS (120253)
844970 1 Invoice CEMETERY PARK FLOW 06/09/2016 304.45 17.52.820.06

Total MURPHY GARDENS (120253): 304.45

MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135)
90936 1 Invoice CITY HALL RESTROOMS 06/14/2016 38.16 01.13.511.08
90989 1 Invoice TRASH CANS 06/20/2016 211.40 17.52.652.00

Total MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135): 249.56

NICOR (151)
061516 1 Invoice MARKETHOUSE RESTRO 06/15/2016 18.53 01.13.511.06
061516 2 Invoice POOL-GAS 06/15/2016 1,013.06 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 1,031.59

NICOR (F) (118924)
061516 1 Invoice CITY HALL-GAS 06/15/2016 80.58 01.13.571.05
061516 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 06/15/2016 83.61 01.41.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 164.19

O'HERRON CO.INC., RAY (548)
1634157 1 Invoice MISC. UNIFORM ACCESS 06/14/2016 54.99 01.21.471.15

Total O'HERRON CO.INC., RAY (548): 54.99

PEPSI-COLA BOTTLING CO. OF DBQ (118779)
20065214 1 Invoice CONCESSION SUPPLIES/ 06/22/2016 157.00 59.55.652.05

Total PEPSI-COLA BOTTLING CO. OF DBQ (118779): 157.00

PERFECTION LAWN CARE (119990)
1312 1 Invoice SUPPLIES/DANDELION S 06/12/2016 340.00 17.52.652.00

Total PERFECTION LAWN CARE (119990): 340.00

REHRIG PACIFIC COMPANY (118916)
KE88789 1 Invoice RECYCLING BINS 06/06/2016 1,512.50 13.44.850.00

Page 96 of 99



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 6/14/2016 - 6/30/2016 Jun 23, 2016  01:55PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total REHRIG PACIFIC COMPANY (118916): 1,512.50

SALZMAN, BILL (1009)
061516 1 Invoice MEALS/ILEAS CONFERE 06/15/2016 210.09 01.21.562.00

Total SALZMAN, BILL (1009): 210.09

SCHWEIHS, MARY JANE (120255)
061716 1 Invoice LESSON REFUND 06/17/2016 25.00 59.55.929.00

Total SCHWEIHS, MARY JANE (120255): 25.00

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
0446905 1 Invoice CITY HALL SECURITY SY 06/15/2016 596.20 01.13.511.01

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 596.20

SPILLMAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (120254)
32697 1 Invoice POLICE SOFTWARE 05/31/2016 24,068.00 01.21.684.00

Total SPILLMAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (120254): 24,068.00

STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (954)
0120747 1 Invoice PV SOLAR DESIGN 06/10/2016 677.11 01.45.532.01

Total STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (954): 677.11

STREICHER'S (396)
1212047 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/NATHAN 06/03/2016 88.00 01.21.471.15

Total STREICHER'S (396): 88.00

TOP BLOCK AND BRICK (814)
3222955 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 06/02/2016 276.20 01.41.514.06

Total TOP BLOCK AND BRICK (814): 276.20

TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625)
105688 1 Invoice FACILITY REPAIRS 06/08/2016 114.02 59.55.511.01

Total TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625): 114.02

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730)
061516 1 Invoice POSTAGE 06/15/2016 556.13 01.13.551.00

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730): 556.13

TRENKAMP ELECTRIC (120060)
7116 1 Invoice GENERATOR SERVICE 06/17/2016 284.58 01.21.511.00

Total TRENKAMP ELECTRIC (120060): 284.58

Page 97 of 99



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 6/14/2016 - 6/30/2016 Jun 23, 2016  01:55PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ULTRAMAX (119293)
159149 1 Invoice AMMUNITION 06/01/2016 976.00 01.21.652.02

Total ULTRAMAX (119293): 976.00

UPS STORE GALENA, THE (1260)
060816 1 Invoice SHIPPING 06/08/2016 10.47 01.21.551.00

Total UPS STORE GALENA, THE (1260): 10.47

VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994)
6946 1 Invoice CEMETERY PARK FLOW 06/14/2016 53.94 17.52.820.06

Total VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994): 53.94

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
061516 1 Invoice VERIZON JET PACK FOR  06/15/2016 38.01 01.21.652.03

9766302673 1 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/VERI 06/15/2016 76.02 22.22.655.00

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 114.03

WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258)
061516 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 06/15/2016 134.93 01.13.651.02
061516 2 Invoice CLOTHING 06/15/2016 131.34 01.41.471.09
061516 3 Invoice SUPPLIES 06/15/2016 29.49 01.41.652.00
061516 4 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 06/15/2016 292.23 59.55.651.00
061516 5 Invoice CONCESSION SUPPLIES 06/15/2016 73.79 59.55.652.05
061516 6 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 06/15/2016 43.51 59.55.654.00

Total WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258): 705.29

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
D005745A 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 05/13/2016 42.38 17.52.652.00

D006649 1 Invoice MOP HEADS 06/10/2016 104.55 58.54.654.01
D007236 1 Invoice CITY HALL RESTROOMS 06/10/2016 201.36 01.13.511.08
D008063 1 Invoice RESTROOM SUPPLIES 06/17/2016 47.60 01.13.511.06
D008064 1 Invoice CITY HALL RESTROOMS 06/17/2016 235.72 01.13.511.08
D008199 1 Invoice SCRUBBER RENTAL & P 06/17/2016 112.60 58.54.654.01

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 744.21

WEX BANK (119104)
061516 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 06/15/2016 1,056.56 01.41.655.00
061516 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 06/15/2016 174.18 17.52.655.03
061516 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 06/15/2016 1,100.58 01.21.655.00
061516 4 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 06/15/2016 97.55 01.46.655.00

Total WEX BANK (119104): 2,428.87

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
062416 1 Invoice TURNER HALL JANITORI 06/24/2016 350.00 58.54.536.00

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 350.00

Page 98 of 99



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 6/14/2016 - 6/30/2016 Jun 23, 2016  01:55PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

WIEGEL, KARI (120258)
062316 1 Invoice LESSON REFUND 06/23/2016 25.00 59.55.929.00

Total WIEGEL, KARI (120258): 25.00

WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666)
13549 1 Invoice COMPUTER MAINTENAN 05/01/2016 175.00 01.13.512.04

Total WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666): 175.00

Grand Totals: 165,603.04

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 4565085
Vendor number hash - split: 7563868
Total number of invoices: 76
Total number of transactions: 126

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 165,603.04 165,603.04

Grand Totals: 165,603.04 165,603.04

Page 99 of 99


	00.00 Agenda 06.27.16 final
	00.0254 Third and Rives Hearing
	01.0255 Felt Manor Liquor License
	00.0209 Felt Manor Liquor License
	DOC003

	02.0256 Minutes 06.13.16
	03.0256 Budget Amendment BA17-01
	BA17-01
	BA17-01 b

	04.0257 Gazebo Roof
	05.0259 Town Rods Music
	06.0260 Corn Roast Proposal
	07.0261 Transit Agreement
	062716b
	Transit Agreement

	08.0238 Dog Park
	09.0240 City Fundraising Race Request FY16-17 2
	10.0264 16PD-02 Grace Episcopal PUD Rezoning and Preliminary Plan
	11.0265 Downtown Sidewalk Replacement
	12.0266 Prevailing Wage Ordinance 2016
	Prevailing Wage Ordinance
	Jo Daviess County Prevailing Wage for July 2015

	13.0267 Street Performers Ordinance
	st per memo
	2015 Street Performers Matrix 012516
	Street Performers Ordinance Changes 2016 012516
	Street Performers Ordinance Changes clean

	14.0268 Warrants 06.27.16



